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Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of China Golden Development Holdings Limited (the
“Company”), | am pleased to present the audited results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2008 (“the year”).

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group’s revenue increased by 160% to approximately HK$301
million. The Group made a net loss of approximately HK$539.8 million mainly due to the impairment loss
recognized in respect of goodwill of the acquisition of Bell Tower department store. The loss per share was
53.62 Hong Kong cents. The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividends for the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2008, we have been implementing our new strategy as a middle and high-end department store operator
in the PRC and the acquisition of Bell Tower department store was completed on 31 August 2008.

Having considered the rapid growth in the people’s general consumption power in the PRC, the Group
decided to step into the business of operating department stores, starting with acquiring one “Century
Ginwa"” branded department store in Urumgi from the Group of Ginwa Investment Company Limited
(together with its subsidiaries, associated and affiliated companies, the “Ginwa Group”) early in the year
2006. Also, we managed to start our own operations of department store by acquiring certain selected
assets from Shaanxi Century Ginwa Hi-Tech Shopping Centre Company Limited (“Xian Hi-Tech”). The
acquisition was completed in May 2007. In September 2007, the Group entered into agreements to acquire
the Bell Tower department store business from Ginwa Investment Company Limited. These agreements were
approved by the shareholders at the Special General Meeting held on 17 January 2008. This means that
after the completion of this acquisition, we will have three strong footholds situated in North-western China
which has double-digit growth rates in GDP and retail sales in the last five years. The strategic foundation
has been paved and we are now ready to consolidate our base and expand outside Xian.
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Chairman’s Statement

FUTURE PLAN AND PROSPECT

We have made steady progress in 2008 in implementing our department store focused business strategy, we
are finally engaged in one of the most attractive industries in the PRC — operation of department stores. The
continuous improvements of the standard of living in the PRC will keep on stimulating consumer’s spending
that supports our business. We will continue exploring opportunities by acquiring existing Century Ginwa
department stores and expanding Century Ginwa geographically in the PRC and to strengthen the corporate
governance of the Group, especially on the newly acquired department stores to further enhance the
Group's market status and maximise shareholder value. We are confident that the Group is well-positioned
to continue with the implementation of its business strategy. The Board and | believe that 2009 will be an
extremely challenging year for the Company and it will see a doubling of effort by the Group to ensure
sustainable growth.

APPRECIATION

I would like to express my deep thanks to my fellow directors for their valuable contribution and my
heartfelt gratitude to all our employees for their dedicated efforts and hard work. | and on behalf of the
Board would also like to extend my sincere thanks to our shareholders, customers, suppliers, bankers and
business associates for their continued strong support.

Hu Yangxiong
Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 24 April 2009
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL RESULTS

This year the Group has one more department store in Xian since September 2008, hence:

i) The turnover of the Group for the twelve months ended 31 December 2008 increased to
approximately HK$301.0 million compared to approximately HK$115.6 million for the last period, an
increase of approximately 160.3%.

ii) The gross profit of the Group increased to approximately HK$204.7 million compared to
approximately HK$82 million of the last period. The gross profit margin of the Group for the twelve
months ended 31 December 2008 dropped slightly to approximately 67.9% from 70.9% of the last
period due to higher product costs.

iii) The operating, general and administrative expenses increased to approximately HK$202.8 million
compared to approximately HK$81 million of the last period.

The finance costs increased by approximately 1,845% to approximately HK$44.5 million compared to
approximately HK$2.3 million for the last period, as a result of less borrowing activities during the year.

Even though the Group generated a higher turnover for 2008, the overall loss for the year from continuing
operations amounted to approximately HK$539,831,000 (2007: profit approximately HK$5,330,000),
primarily as the result of the impairment of goodwill in respect of the acquisitions of Century Ginwa Joint
Stock Company Limited amounting to HK$605 million. The business value of this subsidiary was based
on the valuation reports issued by RHL Appraisal Limited (“RHL"”), an independent professional valuer.
The decision to impair the carrying amounts of the goodwill was made by the Board after taking into
consideration RHL's reports, and the severity of the global financial and economic crisis.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2008, net current liabilities and total assets less current liabilities of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$1,037 million (31 December 2007: net current assets of HK$251.3
million) and approximately HK$695.6 million (31 December 2007: HK$357.8 million) respectively. As at 31
December 2008, the Group had cash and cash equivalents amounted to approximately HK$90.3 million (31
December 2007: HK$238.4 million). The current ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2008 was 0.16 (31
December 2007: 3.41). The gearing ratio, being the bank loan divided by the shareholders’ equity, as at 31
December 2008, was nil (31 December 2007: nil). The capital raising activities during the year are listed in
the note 31 to the Financial Statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Change in Business Strategy

[t was mentioned in the 2006 and 2007 Annual Reports that the Group would continue to explore other
business opportunities so as to diversify its business interests. With the huge population of the People's
Republic of China (“PRC"), PRC has a large consumer base which provides tremendous opportunities for
distributors of consumer goods. Having considered the rapid growth in the PRC consumption power, the
Group decided to diversify its business into the operation of department stores, starting with acquiring one
“Century Ginwa"” branded department store in Urumgi from Ginwa Group in May 2006.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Merger & Acquisition

Acquisition of 76.43% shareholding of Century Ginwa

As mentioned in our 2007 Annual Report, on 25 September 2007, China Rich International Management
Limited (“China Rich”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into an Acquisition Agreement
with Ginwa Investment Company Limited (“Ginwa"), pursuant to which China Rich has agreed to acquire
and Ginwa has agreed to dispose of 76.43% equity interest in Century Ginwa Joint Stock Company Limited
("Century Ginwa") owned by Ginwa at the Consideration of RMB180,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$185,400,000). Ginwa is beneficially owned as to 60% by Mr. Wu and is therefore a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules.

On the same day, the Company also entered into a BM Agreement (as supplemented by a supplemental
agreement dated 28 December 2007) with Best Mineral Resources Limited (“Best Mineral”) and Mr. Wu,
pursuant to which Best Mineral agreed to, inter alias, provide the Profit Guarantee and the Repayment
Guarantee, and the Company agreed to issue a Consideration Convertible Bond (“Consideration CB") of
HK$1,231,612,200 to Best Mineral upon completion of the Acquisition. Application will be made to the
Stock Exchange for the listing of, and the permission to deal in, the new Shares upon conversion of the
Consideration CB.

All these agreements and transactions constitute connected transactions according to the Listing Rules.
A Special General Meeting was required and held on 17 January 2008 at which these agreements and
transactions were approved by Independent Shareholders. Approval was granted by the government
authorities. The registration procedures and transfer of assets were also completed in August 2008. This
shop has started its contributions to the Group.

In the following years, it is our Group's policy to consolidate and strengthen our base at Xian and explore
more business opportunities in North-western China by setting up more stores and deepening our quality
image in the market.

BANKING FACILITIES
As at 31 December 2008, the Group had no outstanding banking facilities (2007: nil).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the year, the Group’s operation of department stores earned revenue and incurred costs in Renminbi.
Renminbi was relatively stable although there was an appreciation pressure during the year. The Directors
considered that the Group's exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rate was minimal, and accordingly,
the Group did not employ any financial instruments for hedging purpose.

10 CHINA GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2008



BEERENWE DN

GHIBITE

WAL 76.43%.2 RIE

BN —_EEHFEFRAEL - R_ET+FNA-TER REEREEEAR QT ([HRE] KRR EH B
AR HESERERERAR ([ EE—HWERBH KEHZADY RERBKESTELEEFENMT
wLeERNDERAR ([ELETE]) T76.43% A ER - £18/4£180,000,0007T A R#& (49%(E185,400,000
BIL)EIEAREEERITE0% - BIELTHRAUEER [RAEAELARRIBEAL

[ B - KA A JrEEBest Mineral Resources Limited ( [Best Mineral | ) R R AR TF —HBMZE (A —H R =
TTLFFT AT N\BETCHNH B HRELHE) - BIBEHE  Best MineralAIZMWFIEF BIEH FTRFRE
N BB HIERE AR T RIRE B AU EE S 7 A1 Best Mineral317—191,231,612,200/8 TR B AT 2 I E
HFoEREARBREHFERE  BRBMIMBEBFETIRETRRS -

FMBEGSERXZREEXZORELTRUZKE - MOBEBROEREIRGETR_ZTN\F—-A+LH
BT MBEHBELRZERNG LEBIRRIE- M LMRBTERTERIE - FRAEMELTEMREE
BEEETR _ZEZN\FNAATK CEOERECHREASEXEERMER -

EARRELF AEENBRREZERBCALERNEL TEBERTLEHLRAMAETSNERTER
KRB MR REE L -

RITAE
R-FENF+-A=+—B FAEEYEHREEZROIBE (ZTTLF E) -
B % &L kR

REERN AEEKLLENAERERS EMRBRZWARELEZ EROUARBHE -BEARBERBHR
BRAEED HEDBHEYREE EFTAAAEEERHZEXRPRAREN RERBEMSH TAEEL -

—senseHh | rEeR2RERAE 11



Management Discussion and Analysis

SEASONAL OR CYCLICAL FACTORS

During the year, the Group's business operations were not significantly affected by any seasonal and cyclical
factors.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2008, except as disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements, the Group and the
Company have no other material contingent liabilities (31 December 2007: Nil).

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2008, the Group employed 1,196 (2007: 656) full time employees including
management and administrative staff. Most of the employees are employed in Mainland China. The
headcount of the Group increases significantly as the Group has acquired operations of department
stores in the PRC. The employees’ remuneration, promotion and salary increments are assessed based
on both individual’'s and Company’s performance, professional and working experience and by reference
to prevailing market practice and standards. Apart from the general remuneration package, the Group
also granted share options and discretionary bonus to the eligible staff based on their performance and
contribution to the Group. The Group regards quality staff as one of the key factors to corporate success.

1 2 CHINA GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2008
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Hu Yangxiong

Mr. Hu Yangxiong (“Mr. Hu"”), aged 48, joined the Board as an Independent Non-Executive Director in
November 2001 and was re-designated as an Executive Director on 28 March 2006. Mr. Hu was appointed
as the Vice-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer with effect from 17 May 2006.

Mr. Hu graduated from Zhengzhou Airline Industry Management Institute, Beijing Airline, Spaceflight
University and Graduate School of the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences with major in Financial
Management, Engineering Management and Economic Laws respectively. He is also qualified as CPA of
China and Advanced Accountant. Mr. Hu is currently a Director of New Taohuayuen Culture Tourism Co.,
Ltd. the shares of which are listed on the OTC Bulletin Board in the United States.

Qu Jiaqi

Mr. Qu Jiagi (“Mr. Qu"), aged 50, was appointed Executive Director of the Company on 11 August 2007. He
is currently Vice President and Director of Ginwa Enterprise (Group) Inc. (“Ginwa Enterprise”) and General
Manager of Century Ginwa Joint Stock Limited Company (“Century Ginwa"), both companies are connected
persons of the Company as defined under the Listing Rules. Mr. Qu joined Ginwa Enterprise and Century
Ginwa Group in 1999. Before that, Mr. Qu worked with several other large department stores and shopping
malls in Xian, China.

Mr. Qu has nearly 30 years of working experience in department store business. Mr. Qu received
Management education and training in Mainland China. He also received training in High Level Business
Administration from the Open University of Hong Kong. He was awarded the “Shaanxi Province Outstanding
Young Entrepreneur” in October 2000 and “China Professional Operational Management Master” ( /1 B 7
/L KAD) in 2005. Mr. Qu is also a Representative of the 13th and 14th Xian City People’s Assembly.

14 CHINA GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2008
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

Li Haogang

Mr. Li (“Mr. Li"), aged 44, was appointed Executive Director of the Company on 11 August 2007. He is
currently Assistant to President of Ginwa Enterprise (Group) Inc. (“Ginwa Enterprise”) and General Affairs
Assistant General Manager of Century Ginwa Joint Stock Limited Company (“Century Ginwa"), both
companies are connected persons of the Company as defined under the Listing Rules. Mr. Li joined Ginwa
Enterprise in 1988. Before that, Mr. Li worked with Shaanxi Jin Run Property Development Company.

Mr. Li has rich experience in corporate operations, management and business development. He was awarded
the “Xian City Outstanding Young Entrepreneur” in 1996 and “The Seventh Year Shaanxi Province Excellent
(Outstanding) Young Entrepreneur”.

Sha Yingjie

Mr. Sha (“Mr. Sha”), aged 51, was appointed Executive Director of the Company on 1 July 2007. He is
currently the Financial Controller of Century Ginwa Joint Stock Company Limited (“Century Ginwa”), a
connected person of the Company as defined under the Listing Rules. Mr. Sha joined Century Ginwa in
1997 and was appointed Financial Controller and Assistant General Manager in 2004 and 2009 respectively.
Before Mr. Sha joined Century Ginwa, he once worked as Financial Controller of the Supply Station of XiBei
Electrical Engineering Company Limited, and the Financial Controller of Xian Taiwan Hotel.

Mr. Sha has more than 20 years of working experience in commerce and finance. Mr. Sha received
Management education and training in Mainland China. He also received training in High Level Business
Administration from the Open University of Hong Kong. He was awarded China Career Manager in June
2003 and was appointed Taxation Practice Review Inspector by Xian Tax Bureau in the PRC in 2006.

Lu Xiaoling

Ms. Lu (“Ms. Lu”), aged 52, was appointed Executive Director of the Company on 1 February 2009. She
is currently Chief Representative of the Xian Representative Office of China King Management Limited (a
wholly subsidiary of the Company), and Director of Ginwa Enterprise (Group) Inc. Ms. Lu once worked as
Chairman and General Manager of Guo Da Financial Management Consultancy Company Ltd., and Chief
Accountant of Xian Xiang Yu Aero Technology Development (Group) Company Ltd.

Ms. Lu has more than thirty years of commerce, financial and various management experiences. Ms. Lu
received both domestic and overseas financial management education and training. She is an associate
member of China Association of Chief Financial Officers. She has obtained professional qualifications
including China Senior Accountant, International Finance Manager of Cambridge, England, China
Certified Project Data Analyst, International Finance Manager, China Certified Tax Planner, Senior Executive
Independent Director of Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and China Senior Career Manager.

1 6 CHINA GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2008
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Chan Wai Kwong, Peter

Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter (“Mr. Chan"”), aged 55, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company on 24 September 2004. Mr. Chan graduated with a bachelor degree in Social
Science (Economics) from the University of Western Ontario, Canada in 1978. Mr. Chan has over 24
years' experience in marketing and business development. Mr. Chan is also an Executive Director of China
Solar Energy Holdings Limited and Mobile Telecom Network (Holdings) Limited, both of which are listed
companies in Hong Kong.

Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing

Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing (“Mr. Fu”), aged 39, is the Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary
of Sino Union Petroleum & Chemical International Limited, which is listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Fu is also responsible for the planning and supervising the
implementation of the management information system of Sino Union. He holds a bachelor degree in
science with major in accounting of Bemidji State University, USA and is a member of both American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has
over 12 years of experience in auditing and accounting field.

Tsang Kwok Wai

Mr. Tsang (“Mr. Tsang”), aged 39, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
on 25 September 2008. Mr. Tsang is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants; The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants; and The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.
Mr. Tsang has over fifteen years of experience in accounting and finance. At present, Mr. Tsang runs his own
firm and practices public accounting.

Mr Tsang is an independent non-executive director of K.PI. Company Limited (a company listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) which is engaged in retail business in PRC and ABC Communications
(Holdings) Limited (a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) which is engaged in the
business of financial information services.
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Directors’ Report

The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the audited financial statements for year
31 December 2008 (the “year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and those of the subsidiaries are set out in note
15 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The profit and cash flows of the Group for the year and the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2008 are set out in the financial statements on pages 60 to 211.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividends in respect of the year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the two years ended 30 June 2005, the period
ended 31 December 2006 and for the two years ended 31 December 2008 and the assets and liabilities of
the Group as at 30 June 2004, 2005 and 31 December 2006, 2007 and 2008 are set out on page 212.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year are set out in note 31 to the financial
statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

In accordance with the terms of the share option scheme adopted by the Company pursuant to an ordinary
resolution of the Company passed on 6 November 2001 (the “Share Option Scheme”), the Company may
grant options to the eligible person of the Company to subscribe for shares in the Company, subject to a
maximum of 30% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time excluding for this purpose
shares issued in the exercise of options for the purpose of providing incentives or rewards to selected
eligible person for their contribution to the Group. The Share Option Scheme became effective on 6
November 2001, unless otherwise cancelled or amended according to the Share Option Scheme, will remain
in force for 10 years from that date. Eligible person of the Share Option Scheme includes the followings:—

(i) any director, employee or consultant of the Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or

(ii) any discretionary trust whose discretionary objects include any director, employee or consultant of the
Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or

(iii)  a company beneficially owned by any director, employee or consultant of the Company, a subsidiary
or an affiliate; or

(iv)  any person or entity whose service to the Group or business with the Group contributes or is

expected to contribute to the business or operation of the Group as may be determined by the
directors from time to time.
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Directors’ Report

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The exercise price of the share options shall be the higher of (i) the nominal value of the shares; (ii) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date
of grant; and (iii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant (subject to Scheme
adjustments).

Details of movements in share options of the Company are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

RESERVES
Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are set out in note 29 to
the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2008, no reserves (2007: HK$Nil) were available for distribution to the Company's
shareholders. In addition, the share premium of the Company in the amount of approximately
HK$386,673,000 (2007: HK$307,872,000), may be distributed in form of fully paid bonus shares.

CONVERTIBLE BOND

Details of movements in convertible bond of the Group and the Company during the year are set out in
note 29 to the financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”). The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee.
Under the MPF scheme, each of the Group and its employees make monthly contribution to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the
employer’'s and the employee’s contribution are subject to a cap of monthly earnings of HK$20,000
and thereafter contributions are voluntary. As stipulated by the rules and regulations in PRC, the Group
contributes to a state-sponsored retirement plans for its employees in PRC. The Group contributes to
retirement plans at specified percentages of the basic salaries of its employees, and has no further
obligations for the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits. The state-sponsored retirement
plans are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to retired employees.

FIXED ASSETS
Details of movements in fixed assets of the Group and the Company during the year are set out in note 13
to the financial statements.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group during the year are set out in note 25 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements, no contracts of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Directors’ Report

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company who held office during the year and up to the date of this report were:—

Executive Directors
Mr. Wu Yijian (Chairman) (resigned on 28 May 2008)
Mr. Hu Yangxiong

(Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Sha Yingjie

Mr. Qu Jiaqi

Mr. Li Haogang

Ms. Lu Xiaoling (appointed on 1 February 2009)
Mr. Leung Siu Kuen (resigned on 11 December 2008)
Mr. Lai Chik Fan (resigned on 9 October 2008)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter

Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing

Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai (appointed on 25 September 2008)
Mr. Xiao Ming (resigned on 26 September 2008)

In accordance with the Bye-law 86(2) of the Company, the newly appointed Executive Director, Ms. Lu
Xiaoling and Independent Non-Executive Director, Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai are subject to re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with the Bye-law 87(1) of the Company, Mr. Hu Yangxiong and Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter
will retire from the office of directorship by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from the Independent Non-Executive
Directors, Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter, Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing and Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai, and considers
them to be independent for this year. The Company considers that each of such Independent Non-Executive
Directors to be independent from the Group based on the Guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (”Stock Exchange”)
("Listing Rules”).

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior management of the Group are set out
on pages 14 to 19 of the annual report.

None of the directors had entered into any service contract with any member of the Group which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
Details of the emoluments of the directors and top five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in
note 8 to the financial statements.
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Directors’ Report

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The details of connected transactions of the Group which were discloseable under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules are disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2008, the interests and short positions of the directors and chief executives of the
Company in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “SFO") which were required to be entered into the register required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO or otherwise were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) and/or the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed issuers in the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

(a) Long positions in the shares of HK$0.10 each

Approximate
percentage of

Number of the issued

issued ordinary share capital of

Name of director Nature of interests shares held the Company
Mr. Hu Yangxiong Personal interests 6,960,000 0.60%
Mr. Qu Jiaqi Personal interests 2,000,000 0.17%
Mr. Li Haogang Personal interests 2,000,000 0.17%
Mr. Sha Yingjie Personal interests 2,000,000 0.17%

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, none of the directors or chief executives of the
Company had, under Divisions 7 and 8 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO"), nor were they taken to or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO, any interests or short positions in the shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company, underlying
Shares or debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) or any interests which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers in the
Listing Rules or any interests which are required to be entered into the register kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO.
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Directors’ Report

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Long positions in underlying shares

Name of grantee Date of grant
Mr Hu Yangxiong 15 Jan 2008
Mr. Sha Yingjie 25 May 2006
15 Jan 2008
Mr. Qu Jiagi 25 May 2006
15 Jan 2008
Mr. Li Haogang 25 May 2006
15 Jan 2008

Mr. Leung Siu Kuen 15 Jan 2008
(Note)

Note.—

Exercise
price

HK$0.74

HK$0.45

HK$0.74

HK$0.45

HK$0.74

HK$0.45

HK$0.74

HK$0.74

Vesting and
exercise period

16 Jan 2008 to
15 Jan 2010
25 May 2006 to
25 May 2008
16 Jan 2008 to
15 Jan 2010
25 May 2006 to
25 May 2008
16 Jan 2008 to
15 Jan 2010
25 May 2006 to
25 May 2008
16 Jan 2008 to
15 Jan 2010
16 Jan 2008 to
15 Jan 2010

Mr. Leung Siu Kuen resigned on 11 December 2008.

Number of share options

Outstanding

Outstanding

as at Granted Exercised as at

1 January during during 31 December
2008 the period the period 2008

- 3,154,000 - 3,154,000
2,000,000 - (2,000,000) -
- 2,000,00 - 2,000,000
3,900,000 - (3,900,000) -
- 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
3,022,250 - (3,022,250 -
- 2,000,000 - 2,000,000

- 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
8,922,250 10,654,000 (8,922,250) 10,654,000

All the interests stated above represents long positions. No short positions were recorded in the register
maintained by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO as at 31 December 2008.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, none of the directors or chief executives of the Company
had, under Divisions 7 and 8 of the SFO, nor were they taken to or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO, any interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) or any interests which are
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange or any interests which are required to be
entered into the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or are required pursuant

to the Model Code.
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Directors’ Report

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Interests of shareholders discloseable pursuant to the SFO

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO shows that as at
31 December 2008, the Company had been notified of the following substantial shareholders” interests and
short positions, being interests of 5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital. These interests are in
addition to those disclosed above in respect of the directors of the Company.

Approximate

Number of percentage of

Issued the issued

Name of Long positions/  Nature of ordinary share capital of
shareholder short positions  interests shares held the Company
BMRL Long positions Personal interests 317,464,072 (Note 1) 27.41%
Mr. Chen Jian Long positions Corporate interests 317,464,072 (Note 1) 27.41%
Mr. Li Peng Long positions Personal interests 89,698,156 (Note 2) 7.74%

Notes:—

(1) BMRL held 317,464,072 shares under its own name as at 31 December 2008. Mr. Chen Jian held 100% of the issued
share capital of BMRL. As such, Mr. Chen Jian was deemed to be interested in 317,464,072 shares by virtue of his
shareholding in BMRL.

(2) Mr. Li Peng is entitled to subscribe for new ordinary shares at subscription price of HK$0.49 up to the amount of
HK$48,118,000, as a result of the issue of warrants according to the Warrant Subscription Agreement dated 29 June
2007.

Save as disclosed above, the directors and chief executives of the Company are not aware that there is any
person who, as at 31 December 2008, had an interest or short position in the Shares and underlying Shares
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or who is, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meeting of any other member of the Group.
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Directors’ Report

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
None of the directors of the Company is interested in any business apart from the Group’s business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year, the five largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 2.24% of the Group’s
total turnover and the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 43.24% of the
Group's total purchases. The largest customer to the Group accounted for approximately 0.7% of the
Group’s total turnover while the largest supplier to the Group accounted for approximately 13.67% of the
Group's total purchases.

None of the directors, their associates, or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors,
owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group's five
largest major customers and suppliers during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-laws and the laws in Bermuda.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Analysis by principal activities and geographical markets of the Group’s turnover and results for the year is
provided in note 12 to the financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group was entered into or existed during the year.

MATERIAL LITIGATION

Except as disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
is engaged in any other litigation or arbitration of material importance and there is no litigation or claim of
material importance known to the directors to be pending or threatened by or against the Company or any
of its subsidiaries.
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Directors’ Report

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the
directors as at the date of this report, there is sufficient public float of more than 25% of the Company's
shares in the market as required under the Listing Rules.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of post balance sheet events of the Group are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

Chu and Chu acted as auditors of the Company up to and including the year ended 30 June 2005. Chu and
Chu resigned and Messrs. PKF was appointed as auditors of the Company on 28 February 2006. Messrs. PKF
audited the Company's financial statements for the eighteen months ended 31 December 2006 and for the
year ended 31 December 2007. Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited were appointed as auditors of the Company
in 2008 upon the resignation of Messrs. PKF.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution
for the re-appointment of Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited as auditors of the Company is to be proposed at

the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Hu Yangxiong
Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 24 April 2009
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of corporate governance practices and business
ethics in the firm belief that they are essential for maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence and
maximizing shareholders’ returns.

The Board reviews its corporate governance practices and internal control policy and procedures from time
to time in order to meet the rising expectations of stakeholders and comply with increasingly stringent
regulatory requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

The Board considers that the Company has complied throughout the year ended 31 December 2008 with
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules, except for certain deviations. The corporate governance of the Company for the year is stated as
follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible leadership for the Company. The directors,
individually and collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders. The composition of the directors during the period is set out in the Directors’ Report.

Reasonable notices were given to all directors an opportunity to attend board meetings, although not all
notices were issued for at least 14 days in accordance with CG Code Provision A.1.3. The board reviewed
the situation and resolved to give at least 14 days notice to all directors for regular board meetings in
future.

None of the existing Independent Non-Executive Directors is appointed for a specific term. However, all
the Directors (Executive and Independent Non-Executive) are subject to retirement at least once every three
years under Bye-Law 87(1) of the Bye-Laws of the Company. As such, the Company considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no less
exacting than those in the CG Code Provision A.4.1.

As the resigned Chairman of the Board was principally engaged in business in Mainland China and outside
Hong Kong, he thus could not attend the annual general meeting of the Company for the years 2007 and
2008, which deviated from the requirements set out in CG Code Provision E.1.2. In future, the dates of
general meetings will be more carefully selected and arranged to reduce the chance that it may happen
again.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors a written confirmation of

independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company thus considers all the Independent
Non-Executive Directors are independent for the year.
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Corporate Governance Report

OPERATIONS OF THE BOARD

The Board determines the corporate mission and broad strategies, monitors and controls operating and
financial performance and sets appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the Group's strategies
objectives. According to CG Code Provision A.1.1, the Board should meet regularly and Board meetings
should be held at least four times a year at approximately intervals. During the year, the Board met regularly
and frequently for the review and approval on the business of department stores. Details of Directors’
attendance of the Board, Shareholders, audit and remuneration committee meetings held for the year 31

December 2008 are set out as follows:—

Board
Meeting
Executive Directors
Note 7 Wu Yijian 10/21
Hu Yangxiong 21/21
Sha Yingjie 21/21
Qu Jiaqi 21/21
Li Haogang 21/21
Note 2 Lu Xiaoling 0/21
Note 3 Leung Siu Kuen 18/21
Note 4  Lai Chik Fan 17/21
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Chan Wai Kwong, Peter 19/21
Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing 19/21
Note 5 Tsang Kwok, Wai 2/21
Note 6 Xiao Ming 17/21
Notes.—
1) resigned on 28 May 2008
2) appointed on 1 February 2009
3) resigned on 11 December 2008
4) resigned on 9 October 2008
5) appointed on 25 September 2008
6) resigned on 26 September 2008

AGM & SGM

0/2
2/2
0/2
0/2
0/2
0/2
2/2
2/2

2/2
0/2
0/2
0/2

Audit
Committee

2/2
2/2

2/2

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTION BY DIRECTORS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all the directors, all the directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code throughout the

year ended 31 December 2008.
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Corporate Governance Report

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing in preparation of accounts for each financial period with a
view to ensuring such accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the
results and cashflow for that year. The Company’s accounts are prepared in accordance with all relevant
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors are responsible for ensuring that
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently; and that judgments and estimates
made are prudent and reasonable.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board has not set up a nomination committee. The Executive Directors would consult Independent Non-
Executive Directors on any nominations to the Board and the Board would review regularly the need to
appoint additional Director with appropriate professional knowledge and industry experience.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee is responsible for forming the remuneration’s structure and policy of the
Group, reviewing the remuneration packages of Executive Director and Senior Management, including
bonuses and options granted under the Share Option Scheme, to ensure that such remuneration is
reasonable and not excessive. Generally, their remunerations are determined based on their experience and
qualifications, the Group’s performance as well as market conditions.

The committee shall consist of not less than 2 members. Currently, the remuneration committee consists of
three Independent Non-Executive Directors: Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter, Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai and Mr. Fu
Wing Kwok, Ewing and one Executive Director, Mr. Hu Yangxiong.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The primary objective of the audit committee is to review the financial reporting process of the Group and
its internal control system, oversee the audit process and perform other duties assigned by the Board and
make recommendations for the Company to improve the quality of financial information to be disclosed.
It also reviews the annual and interim reports of the Company prior to their approval by the Board. The
audit committee shall consist of not less than 3 members. Currently, the audit committee consists of three
Independent Non-Executive Directors: Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter, Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing and Mr. Tsang
Kwok Wai and two Executive Directors, Mr. Sha Yingjie and Ms. Lu Xiaoling.

The audit committee has reviewed with management and Baker Tilly the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, and discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters including the
review of the audited results for the year ended 31 December 2008, and the unaudited interim results for
the six months ended 30 June 2008 (by PKF) prior to their approval by the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2008, Baker Tilly, as the external auditors of the Company, have
provided audit services to the Group in respect of 2008 financial statements of the Group at the fee of
HK$1,050,000 (2007: HK$560,000 by PKF) and HK$90,000 by PKF for the review of interim report for the
six month ended 30 June 2008 (2007: HK$55,000).

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective system of internal controls in order to
facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency of operations, safeguard assets against unauthorized use and
dispositions of the Group’s resources, ensure continuous maintenance of proper accounting records and the
truth and fairness of the financial statements, as well as ensure compliance with relevant legislation and
regulations. The system of internal controls is designed and implemented to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and manage rather than eliminate risks associated
with its business activities.

The Board regularly reviews, on a quarterly basis, the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Group. In addition to the maintenance of an adequate system of internal controls for the existing business
units of the Group, the Board is also committed to the continuous enhancement of the internal control
system of the newly acquired business units in PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Board appointed an international management consultancy
firm, Baker Tilly Hong Kong Business Services Limited, to conduct a review of the internal controls system
of the Group with particular focus on corporate governance, inventory management cycle, fixed assets
management cycle, and financial reporting cycle. The results of the internal control review were submitted
to the Audit Committee for consideration. The Audit Committee has reviewed the results of the internal
control review and is satisfied with the Group's internal controls.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

":_.7

BAKER TILLY

HONG KONG LIMITED
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

B RFEG I SH T A PR A
12/E, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong

HW T E P 168-200%%

fG M8 b 0B JR R E 2 M

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
China Golden Development Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Golden Development Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 60 to 211, which
comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31 December 2008, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to
the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2008 and the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 2(b) to the financial statements which indicates
that the Group incurred a consolidated net loss from operations attributable to the equity holders of the
Company of approximately HK$545,172,000 for the year ended 31 December 2008, had consolidated
net current liabilities of approximately HK$1,036,800,000 and a full impairment of issued capital of
HK$11,301,000 as at 31 December 2008. These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of which is dependent on the
continuing financial support from the substantial shareholder in order to finance the Group's future working
capital and financial requirements and the Group’s ability to obtain new working capital from prospective
investors and to generate adequate cash flows from its continuing operations in the foreseeable future. The
consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that would result from a failure to obtain
such financial support and working capital. We consider that adequate disclosures have been made.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 April 2009

Andrew David Ross

Practising certificate number P0O1183
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Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2008 2007
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
(Restated)
Turnover 4 301,052 115,656
Cost of sales (96,483) (33,602)
Gross profit 204,569 82,054
Other revenue and income 5 118,100 11,969
Selling and distribution expenses (27,596) (19,274)
General and administrative expenses (175,232) (61,704)
Provision for impairment of goodwill 16 (604,653) -
Operating (loss)/profit (484,812) 13,045
Finance costs 6(a) (44,524) (2,289)
(Loss)/profit before taxation 6 (529,336) 10,756
Income tax 7 (10,495) (5,426)
(Loss)/profit for the year (539,831) 5,330
Attributable to:

— Shareholders of the Company 9 (545,172) 5,330
— Minority interests 5,341 -
(539,831) 5,330

(Loss)/earnings per share (HK cents) 17
— basic (53.62) 0.94
— diluted N/A 0.89

The notes on pages 60 to 211 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 31 December 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
R —STSTSTSS ] EGSGS—

2008 2007
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed assets 13(a) 158,534 63,836
Intangible assets 14 - 15,578
Goodwill 16 226,579 -
Loan receivables 17 1,343,644 10,000
Deposits for acquisition of subsidiaries - 17,160
Deferred tax assets 28(b) 3,655 -
1,732,412 106,574
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 18 32,372 7,606
Trade and other receivables 19 60,216 22,858
Loan receivables 17 20,979 26,153
Amounts due from related companies 20 - 60,006
Amount due from a director 21 78 -
Time deposits 22 5,685 100,000
Cash and cash equivalents 22 84,686 138,363
204,016 354,986
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 23 853,555 96,335
Amount due to a related company 24 2,502 -
Bank loans, secured 25 358,575 1,059
Obligations under finance leases 26 154 -
Promissory notes 27 - 2,480
Current taxation 28(a) 26,030 3,845
1,240,816 103,719
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (1,036,800) 251,267
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 695,612 357,841
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Convertible bonds 29 706,913 -
NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (11,301) 357,841
CAPITAL AND RESERVES 31(a)
Share capital 115,824 94,842
Reserves (198,133) 262,999
Total (deficit)/equity attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company (82,309) 357,841
MINORITY INTERESTS 71,008 -
TOTAL (DEFICIT)/EQUITY (11,301) 357,841
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24 April 2009.
Hu Yangxiong Sha Yingjie
Director Director

The notes on pages 60 to 211 form part of these financial statements.
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Balance Sheet

As at 31 December 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2008 2007
Note HK$'000 HK$°000
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed assets 13(b) - -
Investments in subsidiaries 15 1 1
Deposits for acquisition of subsidiaries - 17,160
1 17,161
CURRENT ASSETS
Deposits and prepayments 19 543 5,404
Amounts due from subsidiaries 15 736,693 218,554
Time deposits 22 - 100,000
Cash and cash equivalents 22 8 8,410
737,244 332,368
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accrued expenses and other payables 23 1,905 4,142
Amounts due to subsidiaries 15 7,656 329
Promissory notes 27 - 2,480
9,561 6,951
NET CURRENT ASSETS 727,683 325,417
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 727,684 342,578
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Convertible bonds 29 (706,913) -
NET ASSETS 20,771 342,578
CAPITAL AND RESERVES 31(b)
Share capital 115,824 94,842
Reserves (95,053) 247,736
TOTAL EQUITY 20,771 342,578
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24 April 2009.
Hu Yangxiong Sha Yingjie
Director Director

The notes on pages 60 to 211 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Note

TOTAL EQUITY AT 1 JANUARY

NET (LOSS)/INCOME RECOGNISED DIRECTLY IN EQUITY

Exchange differences on translation of financial statements
of overseas subsidiaries

Net (loss)/profit for the year

— attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
— minority interests

MOVEMENTS IN EQUITY ARISING
FROM CAPITAL TRANSACTIONS

Acquisition of subsidiaries 30(a)
Issue of warrants

Equity settled share-based transactions

Shares issued for conversion of convertible bonds 31(a)
Shares issued for exercise of warrants 31(a)
Shares issued for exercise of share options 31(a)
Share issued for placement of new shares

Expenses paid for placement of shares 31

TOTAL (DEFICIT)/EQUITY AT 31 DECEMBER

The notes on pages 60 to 211 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2008 2007
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (529,336) 10,756
Adjustments for:
— Depreciation 6(c) 9,459 3,788
— Amortisation of intangible assets 6(c) 1,497 2,055
— Fair value gain on the derivative component of
convertible bonds (73,108) -
— Loss on disposal of fixed assets 6(c) 583 669
— Finance costs 6(a) 37,563 124
— Interest income 5 (22,086) (1,065)
— Guarantee profit 5 - (4,327)
— Provision for impairment of goodwill 6(c) 604,653 -
— Provision for impairment of other receivables 6(c) 17 32
— Equity settled share-based payments 2,447 -
— Waiver of interest on convertible bonds 5 - (66)
— Waiver of interest on promissory notes 5 (299) -
— Write-back of trade payables 5 (4,936) -
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL 26,454 11,966
Increase in inventories (6,082) (1,798)
Increase in trade and other receivables (7,777) (15,848)
Decrease in amount due from a shareholder - 5,000
Decrease in amounts due from related companies 60,006 -
Decrease in amount due from a director 29 -
Increase in trade and other payables 11,504 28,114
Decrease in amounts due to related companies (68,806) -
NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 15,328 27,434
Income tax paid (11,112) (2,932)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 4,216 24,502
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 620 -
Payment for purchase of fixed assets 13 (17,169) (14,085)
New loans made (31,517) -
Loan repayment received 40,538 -
Deposit refunded/(paid) for acquisition of subsidiaries 13,200 (14,505)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiaries 30(a) (123,248) -
Net cash outflow on acquisition of business 30(b) - (136)
Interest received 2,817 698
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (114,759) (28,028)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2008 2007
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from new bank loan - 1,059
Repayment of bank loans (43,648) -
Proceeds upon placement of new shares - 267,611
Proceeds upon exercise of share options 10,303 7,200
Proceeds upon issuing of warrants - 2,455
Proceeds upon exercise of warrants 920 5,983
Expenses paid for conversion of convertible bonds (2) -
Expenses paid for placement of shares in 2007 (162) (10,564)
Repayment of promissory notes (2,480) (6,000)
Advances to related companies - (46,642)
Loan interest paid (29,263) (124)
Capital element of finance lease rentals paid (84) -
Interest element of finance lease rentals paid (13) -
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (64,429) 220,977
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (174,972) 217,451
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY 238,363 17,696
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES 26,980 3,216
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 22 90,371 238,363

The notes on pages 60 to 211 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
R —STSTSTSS ] EGSGS—

1 COMPANY INFORMATION
China Golden Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in Bermuda on
8 August 2000 as an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda. Its shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 23 October 2000. The address of its registered office is Units C & D, 7th Floor,
China Overseas Building, No. 139 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company has its primary listing on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The principal activity
of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set
out in note 15 to the financial statements.

These financial statements are presented in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000) unless
otherwise stated. These financial statements have been approved for issue by the board of directors
on 24 April 2009.

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective or available
for early adoption for the current accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 3
provides information on the changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except where stated otherwise in the accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that have significant effect on
the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next
year are discussed in note 38.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors have considered the future liquidity of the
Group in view of its net current liabilities position as at 31 December 2008. The Group incurred
a consolidated net loss from operations attributable to equity holders of the Company of
approximately HK$545,172,000 for the year ended 31 December 2008, and had consolidated
net current liabilities of approximately HK$1,036,800,000 and a full impairment of issued
capital of HK$11,301,000 as at 31 December 2008. These conditions indicate the existence
of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern and therefore that it may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business. Nevertheless, the directors are of the opinion that
the Group will be able to finance its future working capital and financial requirements given
that:

(i) the Group has been actively discussing with prospective investors to obtain new working
capital;

(i)  the Company’s substantial shareholder has agreed to provide financial support as is
necessary to enable for the Group to meet its liabilities as they fall due; and

(i)  based on a cash flow forecast prepared by the Group’s management for the twelve
months ending 31 December 2009, the Group will be able to generate adequate cash
flows from its continuing operations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (Continued)

Accordingly, the directors are of the opinion that it is appropriate to prepare the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2008 on a going concern basis. Should the Group
be unable to continue to operate as a going concern, adjustments would have to be made to
write down the value of assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for further liabilities
which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities respectively. The effect of these adjustments has not been reflected
in the financial statements.

Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken
into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by
the Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair values of the assets given, equity
instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs
directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill (note 76). If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised immediately in the profit or loss.

Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets of subsidiaries attributable to equity
interests that are not owned by the Group, whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries,
and in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a financial liability. Minority interests are
presented in the consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Minority interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated income statement as an allocation of the total profit
or loss for the year between minority interests and the equity shareholders of the Company.

64 CHINA GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2008



B 7% ¥R 3% Y &L
(T

2 EESITEE(#)

(b) HBHREREE(F)
Bl EENERRRERARERERGHR _ZEZTN\F+_A=T—"HILFERBEHRRENR
EN - EAREREFELE FeAENKORBEMBEEER FIEEEHBERE RO 5
RIERBDEEEN DB RRPDEE FRDEEEFOE/RDEE U BRRAEABRRES

BEIHE-
(© MEBATARDBER

[ 2 A A 2 RIAT 2 2 B A o o A ) S M2 B B R BORAL 7 9 SR B

BRI - B AR RIE# A 5 E B 2 12 58 - RS 26005 - RIS W AT 2 BE R B H B

WO

L0 PR S S e Ea S P =P Pyt

EHNBENEEARBNENBARRRA WBXNAAER/EENIAE BRATRET
EXGBESIBHAENAE RRBERELHNKAR-

EXGEAMBENAIBRNEELRAENRBERIRBERTCAEERER 2 2R EFE
Pt EEAL B RED - WERABBRARBRB BRI FEERND ZAABAKRRE
B(fiE16) - BWBEBRABRKBENBARFEEC AAE HERNENBARER -

SENERERXFIREBRARFEENARER GHNNRRUGAVBR2BIG -SFEAAR5E

T \FEH | TELRERAERAT 05




Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Subsidiaries and minority interests (Continued)

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the minority’s interest in the equity of a
subsidiary, the excess, and any further losses applicable to the minority, are charged against
the Group's interest except to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation to, and is
able to, make additional investment to cover the losses. If the subsidiary subsequently reports
profits, the Group's interest is allocated all such profits until the minority’s share of losses
previously absorbed by the Group has been recovered.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(j)(ii)).

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business combination over the Group’s interest
in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units and is tested annually for impairment (see note 2(j)(ii)).

Any excess of the Group's interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of a business combination is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. At each balance sheet
date the fair value is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is charged
immediately to profit or loss.

Fixed assets
Fixed assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2(j)(ii)).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of fixed assets, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold improvements 4 to 50 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 2 to 19 years
Motor vehicles 5 to 13 years
Machinery 20 years
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Fixed assets (Continued)
Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment in the course of construction
for production or for its own use purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost less any
recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified in the appropriate category of
fixed assets when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of fixed assets are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and
are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Licence is stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses (see note 2(j)(ii)).

Amortisation of licence is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over its estimated
useful life of 10 years.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or contains a lease if
the Group determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for
an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to the Group substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as being held under finance leases.
Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group are classified as operating leases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

()

Leased assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments, of such assets are included in fixed assets and the
corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the cost of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group will obtain ownership
of the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note 2(f). Impairment losses are
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note 2(j)(ii). Finance
charges implicit in the lease payments are charged to profit or loss over the period of
the leases so as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate of charge on the
remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting period. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method, less any identified impairment losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and trade and other
receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities (other than investments in subsidiaries and
other current and non-current receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost or
are classified as available-for-sale securities) are reviewed at each balance sheet date
to determine whether there is objective evidence or impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group about
one or more of the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and recognised as follows:

For trade and other receivables, the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This assessment is made collectively
where financial assets carried at amortised cost share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and trade and other

receivables (Continued)

- For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative loss that has been recognised
directly in equity is removed from equity and is recognised in profit or loss. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and amortisation)
and current fair value, less any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect of available-for-sale equity
securities are not reversed through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in the
fair value of such assets is recognised directly in equity.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised. Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of trade and other receivables, whose recovery
is considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful
debts are recorded using an allowance account. When the company is satisfied that
recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
and other receivables directly and any amounts held in the allowance account relating
to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off directly
are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at each balance sheet date
to identify indications that the following assets may be impaired or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

- fixed assets;

- intangible assets;

- investments in subsidiaries; and
= goodwill.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its net selling price and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss in
respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

()

(m)

Inventories
Inventories, which represent merchandise held for resale, are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cost of merchandise is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an
expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost less impairment losses for doubtful debts (see note 2(j)(i), except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or
the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less impairment losses for doubtful debts (see note 2(j)(i)).

Convertible bonds

(i) Convertible bonds that contain an equity component
Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity share capital at the option of the
holder, where the number of shares that would be issued on conversion and the value of
the consideration that would be received at that time do not vary, are accounted for as
compound financial instruments which contain both a liability component and an equity
component.

At initial recognition the liability component of the convertible bonds is measured
as the present value of the future interest and principal payments, discounted at the
market rate of interest applicable at the time of initial recognition to similar liabilities
that do not have a conversion option. Any excess of proceeds over the amount initially
recognised as the liability component is recognised as the equity component. Transaction
costs that relate to the issue of a compound financial instrument are allocated to the
liability and equity components in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m)

(n)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Convertible bonds that contain an equity component (Continued)

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised cost. The interest expense
recognised in profit or loss on the liability component is calculated using the effective
interest method. The equity component is recognised in the capital reserve until either
the bond is converted or redeemed.

If the bond is converted, the capital reserve, together with the carrying amount of the
liability component at the time of conversion, is transferred to share capital and share
premium as consideration for the shares issued. If the bond is redeemed, the capital
reserve is released directly to retained profits.

Other convertible bonds
Convertible bonds which do not contain an equity component are accounted for as
follows:

At initial recognition the derivative component of the convertible bonds is measured at
fair value and presented as part of derivative financial instruments (see note 2(e)). Any
excess of proceeds over the amount initially recognised as the derivative component is
recognised as the liability component. Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bond are allocated to the liability and derivative components in proportion
to the allocation of proceeds. The portion of the transaction costs relating to the liability
component is recognised initially as part of the liability. The portion relating to the
derivative component is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The derivative component is subsequently remeasured in accordance with note 2(e).
The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised cost. The interest expense
recognised in profit or loss on the liability component is calculated using the effective
interest method.

If the bond is converted, the carrying amounts of the derivative and liability components
are transferred to share capital and share premium as consideration for the shares
issued. If the bond is redeemed, any difference between the amount paid and the
carrying amounts of both components is recognised in profit or loss.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

(q)

Interest bearing borrowings

Interest bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised and redemption value being
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with any interest and
fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks
and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are
also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
cash flow statement.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

(i)  Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled
to the options, the total estimated fair value of the options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share potions that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to the profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the capital reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account) or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained profits).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(q)

(r)

(s)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the Group demonstrably
commits itself to terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in
profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised directly in equity, in
which case they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits. Apart from differences which arise on initial recognition of
assets and liabilities, all deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not discounted.

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities

(i) Financial guarantees issued
Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make
specified payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a
loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

(i

(ii)

Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee (being
the transaction price, unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably estimated) is initially
recognised as deferred income within trade and other payables. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised
in accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in profit
or loss on initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred income is amortised in
profit or loss over the term of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued.
In addition, provisions are recognised in accordance with note 2(s)(ii) if and when (i) it
becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the
amount currently carried in trade and other payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the
Group has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

(u)

Revenue recognition
Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and

costs,

if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership
of goods have been transferred to the buyer.

Commission from concessionaire sales is recognised upon the sale of goods by the relevant

stores.

Rental

income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the period of the respective leases.

Catering income is recognised at the time when the services are rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the effective interest method.

Sponsor and service fee income is recognised when the event has occurred and the services are
rendered.

Translation of foreign currencies

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the accounts of each of the Group’s entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the
functional currency”). The consolidated accounts are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated income statement, except when deferred
in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying net investment hedges.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign currency
classified as available-for-sale are analysed between translation differences resulting
from changes in the amortised cost of the security and other changes in the carrying
amount of the security. Translation differences related to changes in the amortised cost
are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in the carrying amount are recognised
in equity.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities are reported as
part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences
on non-monetary financial assets such as equities classified as available-for-sale are
included in the available-for-sale reserve in equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

(v)

(w)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing
rate at the date of that balance sheet;

(ii) income and expenses for each consolidated income statement are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

(iii)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of
equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign operations, and of borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to shareholders’ equity. When
a foreign operation is partially disposed of or sold, exchange differences that were
recorded in equity are recognised in the consolidated income statement as part of the
gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be related to the Group

if:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, to
control the Group or exercise significant influence over the Group in making financial
and operating policy decisions, or has joint control over the Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common control;

the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture in which the Group is a
venturer;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w)

(x)

(y)

Related parties (Continued)

(iv)  the party is a member of key management personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent, or a close family member of such an individual, or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such individuals;

(v) the party is a close family member of a party referred to in (i) or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant influence of such individuals; or

(vi)  the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for the benefit of employees of the
Group or of any entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing
products or services (business segment), or in providing products or services within a particular
economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are
different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting system, the Group has chosen
business segment information as the primary reporting format and geographical segment
information as the secondary reporting format for the purposes of these financial statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to
a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment. For
example, segment assets may include inventories, trade receivables and fixed assets. Segment
revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are determined before intra-group balances and intra-
group transactions are eliminated as part of the consolidation process, except to the extent
that such intra-group balances and transactions are between Group entities within a single
segment. Inter-segment pricing is based on similar terms as those available to other external
parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire segment
assets (both tangible and intangible) that are expected to be used for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate assets, interest bearing loans,
borrowings, tax balances, corporate and financing expenses.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid or payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
R —STSTSTSS ] EGSGS—

3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the Group. The adoption of these new and revised
HKFRSs has no material impact on the Group’s financial statements for the current year presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 40). Consequently, there have been no significant changes to the
accounting policies applied in these financial statements for the years presented as a result of these
developments.

4 TURNOVER
The Group is principally engaged in the operation of shopping malls in the PRC.

Turnover represents the amounts received and receivable for goods sold by the Group to outside
customers, net of discounts and sales related taxes, commission from concessionaire sales and rental
income for the year, and is analysed as follows:

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$°000
(Restated)
Sales of goods — direct sales 117,695 40,544
Commission from concessionaire sales (note) 171,743 67,717
Rental income 11,614 7,395
301,052 115,656

Note: The commission from concessionaire sales is analysed as follows:
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
Gross proceeds from concessionaire sales 959,446 379,711
Commission from concessionaire sales 171,743 67,717
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5 OTHER REVENUE AND INCOME

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
Catering income 5,554 2,307
Fair value gain on the derivative component of
convertible bonds (note 29(b)) 73,108 -
Guarantee profit (note 36(c)) - 4,327
Interest income on bank deposits 1,994 698
Interest income on loan receivables 20,092 367
Reimbursement of administrative expenses 4,098 1,210
Sponsor and service fee income 1,151 305
Sundry income 6,868 2,689
Waiver of interest on convertible bonds (Note 27(b)) - 66
Waiver of interest on promissory notes (Note) 299 -
Write-back of trade payables 4,936 -
118,100 11,969

Note: Based on legal advice in the PRC, the Group's trade creditors in the amount of RMB4,340,000 lost their right to
recourse on the debts that they have not requested payment for over three years, recognising a write-back of
trade payables of HK$4,936,000 in the consolidated income statement.

6 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
(a) Finance costs

Bank charges 142 98
Credit card expenses 6,819 2,067
6,961 2,165
Finance charges on obligations under finance leases 13 -
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable within five years 8,994 24
Interest on convertible bonds (note 29(b)) 28,556 -
Interest on promissory notes - 100
37,563 124
44,524 2,289

(b) Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration)
Salaries, wages and other benefits 50,990 22,788
Pension scheme contributions 3,215 1,209
Share-based payment expenses 1,294 -
55,499 23,997
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6  (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$°000
() Other items
Auditor’s remuneration 1,140 612
Amortisation of intangible assets 1,497 2,055
Cost of inventories sold 96,483 33,602
Depreciation 9,459 3,788
Exchange losses 1,121 260
Fair value gain on the derivative component of

convertible bonds (73,108) -
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 583 669

Operating lease charges: minimum lease payments
— in respect of rented properties 55,360 14,166
— in respect of motor vehicles 1,839 -
Provision for impairment of goodwill 604,653 -
Provision for impairment of other receivables 17 32

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:

2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$'000
Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax - -

Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax
Provision for the year (note 28(a)) 10,231 4,939
Under-provision in respect of prior years - 487
10,231 5,426

Deferred tax (note 28(b))

Origination of temporary differences 264 -
10,495 5,426
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT (Continued)
(a) (Continued)
The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to income tax on an entity basis on income
arising or derived from the tax jurisdiction in which they operate.

The Company is exempted from tax in Bermuda until March 2016.

No provison for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in the financial statements as the
Group’s income neither arises, nor is derived, from Hong Kong in both financial years.

The statutory PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate is 25%. The subsidiaries of the Group operated in
the PRC are subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax as follows:

- Xian Century Ginwa Property Investments Company Limited (“Xian Century Ginwa")
enjoys a preferential tax treatment as being a foreign investment enterprise located in
the western region of PRC, including a reduction in PRC Enterprise Income Tax to 15%
until 2010.

- Century Ginwa Urumgi Shopping Mall Company Limited (“Century Ginwa Urumgi”)
and Century Ginwa Joint Stock Company Limited (“Century Ginwa") are subject to the
standard PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate of 25%.

On 16 March 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“New Law"”) by Order No. 63 of the President of the PRC. On 6 December 2007, the State
Council of the PRC issued Implementation Regulations of the New Law. Under the New Law
and Implementation Regulations, the Enterprise Income Tax rate for certain subsidiaries in the
PRC was reduced from 30% to 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

(b)  Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax rates:

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000

(Loss)/profit before taxation (529,336) 10,756
Notional tax on (loss)/profit before taxation (85,378) 1,355
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 93,566 2,895
Tax effect of temporary differences recognised 264 -
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary differences (87) 42
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised 2,151 647
Under-provision in respect of prior years - 487
Over-provision in respect of current year (21) -
Actual tax expense 10,495 5,426
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(a)

Directors’ remuneration
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance and the Listing Rules is as follows:

Name of director

Chairman
Mr. Wu Yijian (note (ii))

Vice-chairman
Mr. Hu Yangxiong

Executive directors

Mr. Leung Siu Kuen (mote (iif)
Mr. Sha Yingjie

Mr. Qu Jiaqi

Mr. Li Haogang

Mr. Lai Chik Fan (note (iv))

Independent non-executive
directors

Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter

Mr. Xiao Ming (note (v))

Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing

Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai (note (vi)

Name of director

Chairman
Mr. Wu Yijian

Vice-chairman
Mr. Hu Yangxiong

Executive directors
Mr. Leung Siu Kuen
Mr. Sha Yingjie

Mr. Qu Jiagi

Mr. Li Haogang

Mr. Lai Chik Fan

Mr. Mo Keung

Mr. Lam Chung Fai

Independent non-executive
directors

Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter

Mr. Kwok Wing Wah

Mr. Xiao Ming

Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing

2008
Salaries,
wages Pension

and other scheme Share-based
Fees benefits Bonuses contributions Sub-total payments Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

(note ()
- 244 - - 244 - 244
- 1,777 100 26 1,903 383 2,286
- 687 54 12 753 182 935
- 142 515 5 662 243 905
- 17 718 5 894 243 1,137
- 158 567 5 730 243 973
9% - = = 9% - 9%
72 - - - 72 - 72
96 - - - 96 - 96
24 - - - 24 - 24
288 3,179 1,954 53 5474 1,294 6,768

2007
Salaries,
wages Pension

and other scheme Share-based
Fees benefits Bonuses contributions Sub-total payments Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000

(note (1)
= 325 = = 325 = 325
- 1,237 - 12 1,249 - 1,249
- 540 - 8 548 - 548
- 48 - - 48 - 48
- 9 - - 9 - 9
- - - 1 1 - 1
- 313 - 4 317 - 317
86 - - - 86 - 86
2 - - - 2 - 2
86 - - - 86 - 86
84 - - - 84 - 84
258 2,472 = 25 2,755 = 2,755
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (Continued)
Notes:

(i) Share-based payments represent the estimated value of share options granted to the directors under the
Company'’s share option scheme. The value of these share options is measured according to the Group's

accounting policies for share-based payment transactions as set out in note 2(q).

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and number of options granted, are
disclosed under the paragraph “Share option scheme” in the Directors’ Report and note 32.

(ii) Mr. Wu Yijian resigned on 28 May 2008.

(iii) Mr. Leung Siu Kuen resigned on 11 December 2008.
(iv) Mr. Lai Chik Fan resigned on 9 October 2008.

(v) Mr. Xiao Ming resigned on 26 September 2008.

(vi) Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai was appointed on 25 September 2008.

(b) Five highest paid individuals
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, all (2007: four) are directors whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 8(a). The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the
other one individual for 2007 are as follows:

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$°000

Salaries, wages and other benefits - 306
Pension scheme contributions - 2
- 308

The emoluments of nil (2007: one) individual with the highest emoluments are within the
following bands:

2008 2007

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

Nil — HK$1,000,000 - 1
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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9 LOSS/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The consolidated loss/profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company includes a loss
of HK$422,118,000 (2007: a loss of HK$2,319,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

10 DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of dividends for the year ended 31 December 2008
(2007: Nil).

11 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share
The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based on the (loss)/profit attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company of HK$545,172,000 (2007: profit of HK$5,330,000) and
the weighted average number of 1,016,735,000 ordinary shares (2007: 565,140,000 ordinary
shares) in issue during the year, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares:

Number of shares

2008 2007

‘000 ‘000

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January (note 31(c)) 948,419 491,067

Effect of share options exercised 16,677 4,175

Effect of exercise of warrants 1,120 2,958

Effect of conversion of convertible bonds 50,519 4,936

Effect of placement of new shares - 62,004
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 31

December 1,016,735 565,140
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

11 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

The calculation of diluted (loss)/earnings per share is based on the following data:

(i) (Loss)/profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company

(diluted)

(Loss)/profit attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders

After tax effect of effective interest on the liability
component of convertible bonds

Effect of fair value gain recognised on the
derivative component of convertible bonds

(Loss)/profit attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders (diluted)

(ii)  Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
at 31 December

Effect of conversion of convertible bonds (note 29)

Effect of deemed issue of shares under the
Company'’s share option scheme for nil
consideration (note 32)

Effect of warrants

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
at 31 December (diluted)

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$°000
(545,172) 5,330

23,844 =
(73,108) =
(594,436) 5,330
2008 2007
‘000 ‘000
1,016,735 565,140
- 11,593

- 6,144

- 18,010
1,016,735 600,887

The exercise of the outstanding share options and warrants has no dilutive effect for
the year ended 31 December 2008 because the exercise price of the Company’s share
options and warrants were higher than the average market price of the shares during

the year.

The convertible bonds have no dilutive effect for the year ended 31 December 2008.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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12 SEGMENT REPORTING
Segment information is presented by way of two segment formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting
basis, by business segment; and (ii) on a secondary segment reporting basis, by geographical
segment.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed separately, according to the nature of
their operations and the products and services they provide. Each of the Group’s business segments
represents a strategic business unit that offers products and services which are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of other business segments. Summary details of the business
segments are as follows:

In determining the Group’s geographical segments, revenues are attributable to the segments based
on the location of the customers, and assets are attributable to the segments based on the location
of the assets.

(a) Business segments
The following tables present revenue, results and certain assets, liabilities and expenditure
information for the Group’s business segments:

Operation of

shopping malls in PRC Others Consolidated
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Revenue
Revenue from external customers 301,052 115,656 - - 301,052 115,656
Total revenue 301,052 115,656 - - 301,052 115,656
Result
Segment results 27,504 7,888 (630,416) (6,812) (602,912) 1,076
Other income 118,100 11,969
(Loss)/profit from operations (484,812) 13,045
Finance costs (44,524) (2,289)
(Loss)/profit before tax (529,336) 10,756
Income tax (10,495) (5,426)
(Loss)/profit for the year (539,831) 5,330
Attributable to:
- Shareholders of the Company (545,172) 5,300
- Minority interests 5,341 -
(539,831) 5,300
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Business segments (Continued)

Asset and Liability
Segment assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities

Total liabilities

Expenses
Depreciation
Amortisation of intangible assets
Provision for impairment of goodwill
Provision for impairment of other receivables
Fair value (gain) on the derivative
component of convertible bonds

Capital expenditure

Geographical segments

Revenue from external customers
Other revenue

Total revenue
Segment assets

Capital expenditure

Operation of

shopping malls in PRC Others Consolidated
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1,687,811 299,792 248,617 161,768 1,936,428 461,560
1,687,811 299,792 248,617 161,768 1,936,428 461,560
1,247,063 96,735 700,666 6,984 1,947,729 103,719
1,247,063 96,735 700,666 6,984 1,947,729 103,719
9,437 3,741 22 47 9,459 3,788
1,497 2,055 - = 1,497 2,055
- - 604,653 - 604,653 -
17 32 - - 17 32
- - (73,108) - (73,108) -
17,169 14,073 - 12 17,169 14,085

PRC Hong Kong Consolidated
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
301,052 115,656 - - 301,052 115,656
43,493 6,693 74,607 5,276 118,100 11,969
344,545 122,349 74,607 5,276 419,152 127,625
1,687,811 299,792 248,617 161,768 1,936,428 461,560
17,169 14,073 - 12 17,169 14,085
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13 FIXED ASSETS

(@) The Group

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor Construction
improvements equipment vehicles Machinery in progress Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000

Cost:
At 1 January 2007 36,290 3,653 - - - 39,943
Exchange differences 2471 232 - - - 2,703
Acquisition of business 4,078 9,074 530 - - 13,682
Additions 4,260 7,243 204 - 2,378 14,085
Disposals (1,683) (74) - - - (1,757)
At 31 December 2007 45,416 20,128 734 - 2,378 68,656
At 1 January 2008 45,416 20,128 734 - 2,378 68,656
Exchange differences 2,824 1,230 26 (174) 127 4,033
Revaluation 5,649 652 - - - 6,301
Acquisition of subsidiaries 59,949 9,082 3,416 8,955 3,522 84,924
Additions 13,916 1,768 519 - 966 17,169
Transfers 1,078 - - - (1,078) -
Disposals (3,188) (806) (563) - - (4,557)
At 31 December 2008 125,644 32,054 4,132 8,781 5,915 176,526
Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2007 1,190 701 - - - 1,891
Exchange differences 129 100 - - - 229
Charge for the year 2,124 1,637 27 - - 3,788
Written back on disposals (1,051) (37) - - - (1,088)
At 31 December 2007 2,392 2,401 27 - - 4,820
At 1 January 2008 2,392 2,401 27 - - 4,820
Exchange differences 501 262 3 - - 766
Revaluation 4,752 1,549 - - - 6,301
Charge for the year 5,750 3,020 252 437 - 9,459
Written back on disposals (2,667) (643) (44) - - (3,354)
At 31 December 2008 10,728 6,589 238 437 - 17,992
Carrying value:
At 31 December 2008 114,916 25,465 3,894 8,344 5915 158,534
At 31 December 2007 43,024 17,727 707 = 2,378 63,836

The Group has motor vehicles held under finance leases expiring for 3 years. At the end of the
lease term the Group has an option to purchase the assets at a price deemed to be a bargain
purchase option. None of the leases include contingent rentals. At the balance sheet date,
the net book value of motor vehicles held under finance leases of the Group amounted to
HK$217,000 (2007: HK$Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13 FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

(b) The Company

Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment
HK$'000
Cost:

At 1 January 2007 and 31 December 2007 50
At 1 January 2008 50
Disposals (50)
At 31 December 2008 -

Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2007 and 31 December 2007 50
At 1 January 2008 50
Written back on disposals (50)

At 31 December 2008

Carrying value:
At 31 December 2008

At 31 December 2007
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Group

Cost:

At 1 January 2007
Exchange differences

At 31 December 2007

At 1 January 2008
Exchange differences
Eliminated upon acquisition of subsidiaries

At 31 December 2008

Accumulated amortisation:

At 1 January 2007
Exchange differences
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2007

At 1 January 2008

Exchange differences

Charge for the year

Written back against elimination on consolidation

At 31 December 2008

Carrying value:
At 31 December 2008

At 31 December 2007

Licence
HK$'000

17,892
1,253

19,145

19,145
3,593
(22,738)

1,333
179
2,055

3,567

3,567

2,648

1,497
(7,712)

15,578

The intangible assets represent the right to operate department stores in PRC using the brand name
“Century Ginwa” for a 10-year term commencing 13 April 2005 licensed by Century Ginwa to the
Group’s wholly owned subsidiary, Century Ginwa Urumgi. Upon the acquisition of Century Ginwa
by the Group on 31 August 2008 (see also note 30(a)), Century Ginwa became a subsidiary of the
Group. The above licensing transaction and balance have been eliminated upon consolidation.
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15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unlisted shares, at cost
Less: Provision for impairment loss

Amounts due from subsidiaries
Less: Provision for impairment loss

Amounts due to subsidiaries

The Company

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
2 2
Q) (1)

1 1
1,213,692 237,553
(476,999) (18,999)
736,693 218,554
7,656 329

The amounts due to/from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed terms of

repayment.

Details of the subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of

establishment
Name and operation
Bright Chance (Asia) Limited Hong Kong
China King Management Limited Hong Kong
China Rich International Hong Kong

Management Limited

Xian Century Ginwa Property
Investments Company Limited
AR RS EENERAT

Century Ginwa Urumgi Shopping
Mall (H.K.) Limited

People’s Republic
of China

Hong Kong

Particulars of
issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital

HK$1,000

HK$ 1

HK$1

HK$65,000,000

HK$10
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Ownership interest

Direct

100%

100%

100%

Indirect

Nature of business

- Provision of administrative

100%

100%

services

Investment holding

Investment holding

Operation of
a shopping mall

Investment holding
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R B 1R R B B (476,999) (18,999)
736,693 218,554
R S NGIE S 7,656 329
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SETR
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15

16

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of
establishment
Name and operation
Century Ginwa Urumgi Shopping People’s Republic
Mall Company Limited of China
tREESBAEENTLERAR
Century Ginwa Joint Stock People’s Republic
Company Limited of China
tReERHERAR
Xian Century Ginwa Property People’s Republic
Management Company Limited of China

ARULEENEERERAT

GOODWILL

The Group

Cost:

At 1 January 2007 and 31 December 2007

At 1 January 2008
Additions (note 30(a))
Disposal

At 31 December 2008

Accumulated impairment:

At 1 January 2007 and 31 December 2007

At 1 January 2008
Provision for impairment loss
Written back on disposal

At 31 December 2008

Carrying value:
At 31 December 2008

At 31 December 2007

Particulars of
issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital

RMB50,000,000

RMB235,500,000

RMB1,000,000
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Ownership interest

Direct

Indirect

100%

76.43%

76.43%

Nature of business

Operation of
a shopping mall

Operation of
a shopping mall

Property management

HK$'000

4,513

4,513
831,232
(2,802)

832,943

4,513

4,513
604,653
(2,802)

606,364

226,579
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832,943
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16

GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash-generating units (“CGU") identified according to business
segment as follows:

2008
HK$'000

Operation of shopping malls in PRC 226,579

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on value-in-use calculations. Goodwill is
expected to generate cash flow for an indefinite period. These calculations use cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering approximately a five-year period.
Cash flows beyond that five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated rates stated below. The
growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the business in which the CGU
operates.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations:

2008

%

— Gross margin 79
— Growth rate 2
— Discount rate 14.8

Management determined the budgeted gross margin and growth rate based on past performance
and its expectations for market development. The discount rate used is post-tax and reflects specific
risks relating to this segment.
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17 LOAN RECEIVABLES

The Group

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000

At 1 January 36,153 30,000
Exchange differences (7,738) -
Add: Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 30(a)) 1,333,018 -
Add: Additions 43,728 6,153
Less: Settlement during the year (40,538) -
At 31 December 1,364,623 36,153
Less: Current portion classified as current assets (20,979) (26,153)
Non-current portion 1,343,644 10,000

(@) The carrying amounts of loan receivables are analysed as follows:

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000

Interest free portion 460,956 6,153
Interest bearing portion at 2%-7.839% (2007: 2%) 903,667 30,000
1,364,623 36,153
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(a) EWERBREFEAEUTIMN
—EENE —ETLF
FET FHETT
% BEZELH 460,956 6,153
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e
17 LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)
(b) Maturity analysis
The Group
2008 2007
HK$’'000 HK$°000
The loans are receivable as below:
Within 1 year 20,979 26,153
After 1 year but within 5 years 1,343,644 10,000
1,364,623 36,153
(c) Currency analysis
The carrying amounts of loan receivables are denominated in the following currencies:
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$°000
Hong Kong dollars 17,000 30,000
Renminbi 1,347,623 6,153
1,364,623 36,153
(d)(i) Loans to Ming Fai

On 28 December 2004, Ming Fai Princess Entertainment Limited (“Ming Fai”), a former
subsidiary of the Group, entered into an agreement (the “Agreement”) with Anglo View
Limited (the “Licensee”) and Mr. Cai Jun Jie who is the sole legal and beneficial owner of the
Licensee. Pursuant to the Agreement, Ming Fai has paid HK$40,000,000 (the “Consideration”)
to the Licensee in consideration of the Licensee undertaking that it shall pay to Ming Fai 20%
of the net profits of the gaming facilities of a cruise ship known as “Ming Fai Princess” for
a period of 5 years commencing on 1 January 2005. The aforesaid share of profits shall be
payable semi-annually. The Licensee guarantees to Ming Fai that the aforesaid share of annul
profits in the two years ended 31 December 2006 shall not be less than HK$5,000,000 each
and the aforesaid share of annual profits in the three years ending 31 December 2009 shall not
be less than HK$10,000,000 each.

The guaranteed share of profits for the half-year ended 30 June 2005 in the amount of
HK$2,500,000 has already been received by Ming Fai in September 2005 and was recognised
as revenue in the year ended 30 June 2005.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

17 LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(d)(®)

(d)(ii)

(d)(iii)

(d)(iv)

(e)

Loans to Ming Fai (Continued)

On 7 October 2005, Ming Fai entered into a supplement agreement (the “Supplemental
Agreement”) with the Licensee whereby Ming Fai agreed with the Licensee to give up its
right to the profits sharing arrangement under the Agreement dated 28 December 2004
as detailed above in exchange of a fixed return from the Licensee, calculated as 2% on the
amount of repayment of the outstanding Consideration to be received. The repayments will be
made semi-annually in the amount of HK$2,550,000 (including repayment of Consideration
in the amount of HK$2,500,000) for the three half-years ended 31 December 2006 and
HK$5,100,000 (including repayment of Consideration in the amount of HK$5,000,000) for the
six half-years ending 31 December 2009.

On 25 September 2006, Ming Fai, Bright Chance (Asia) Limited (“Bright Chance”) and Mr.
Cai Jun lJie entered into a loan assignment agreement. Pursuant to the loan assignment
agreement, Ming Fai agreed to assign all its rights and benefits in the loan receivable balance
of HK$30,000,000 to Bright Chance at a total consideration of HK$30,000,000. The loan
receivable balance is interest bearing at 2% per annum and the repayments will be made semi-
annually in the amount of HK$5,100,000 (including repayment of the principal in the amount
of HK$5,000,000) for the six half years ending 31 December 2009.

Loan to Fortune Dragon

On 24 January 2008, the Group’s wholly owned subsidiary, China King Management Limited
entered into an agreement with Fortune Dragon Investments Limited, an independent third
party, to grant a loan of HK$21,000,000 and charge interest at the Hong Kong Dollar Prime
Rate per annum. On 18 August 2008, the loan was repaid.

Loans to Ginwa Investments

In September 2008, the Group’s newly acquired subsidiary, Century Ginwa, entered into an
unsecured loan agreement with Ginwa Investments Company Limited (“Ginwa Investments”)
for its advances of RMB1,165,348,000 to be repayable by 31 August 2013. The interest
bearing loan portion carries interest at the five-year lending rate published by the Bank of
China, the PRC (see note 36 (d)). Mr. Wu Yijian, a former executive director and chairman of
the Company, has a 60% equity interest in Ginwa Investments, thus, Ginwa Investments is a
connected party to the Group.

Other loan receivables

The Group’s wholly owned subsidiary, Xian Century Ginwa, signed loan agreements with
independent third parties, for unsecured loans of RMB3,500,000, which bear interest at 7.83%
per annum and are repayable by 25 March 2009.

In December 2007, the Group's wholly owned subsidiary, Century Ginwa Urumgi signed a
loan agreement with its landlord of the shopping mall for a loan of RMB5,750,000, which was
unsecured, interest free and was repayable by 31 December 2008. During the year, due to
default in repayment from the landlord, the loan was used to offset the rent payable for the
shopping mall.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of loan receivables approximate their fair
values.
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19
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INVENTORIES

Inventories in the balance sheet comprise:

Raw materials
Low value consumables
Merchandise

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables
Less: Allowance for impairment loss
(note 19(c))

Deposits and prepayments
Other receivables
Value-added tax recoverable

The Group
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
836 337
2,071 738
29,465 6,531
32,372 7,606

The Group The Company

2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
8,501 3,249 - -
(3,118) - - -
5,383 3,249 - -
7,497 5,789 543 5,404
10,336 3,979 - -
37,000 9,841 - _
60,216 22,858 543 5,404
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19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses within
one year. The directors consider the carrying amounts of trade and other receivables approximate

their fair values.

(a) Currency analysis

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company's trade and other receivables are

denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollars
Renminbi

The Group The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
764 5,843 543 5,404
59,452 17,015 - _
60,216 22,858 543 5,404

(b) Aging analysis

Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables (net of allowance for impairment

loss) with the following aging analysis as of the balance sheet date:

0-30 days
31-60 days
61-90 days
Over 90 days

Amounts past due
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The Group
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
4,073 2,753
175 43
107 -
1,028 453
5,383 3,249
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19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

20
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(c) Impairment of trade receivables

The movement in the allowance for impairment loss during the year is as follows:

At 1 January
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Exchange differences

At 31 December

(d) Trade receivables that are not impaired

The Group

2008
HK$°000

3,137
(19)

2007
HK$'000

3,118

The Group’s retail sales to customers are mainly on cash basis, either in cash or credit card
payments. The Group does not have a defined fixed credit policy as its major trade receivables

arise from credit card sales.

Based on past experience, the directors believe that no impairment allowance is necessary in
respect of these trade receivables arise from credit card sales as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES
Details disclosed pursuant to Section 161B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance in relation
to amounts due from related companies in which Mr. Wu Yijian, a former executive director and

chairman of the Company, had indirect controlling interests are as follows:

Century Ginwa

Shaanxi Century Ginwa Hi-Tech Shopping Centre
Company Limited (“Ginwa Hi-Tech”)

Maximum

amount

outstanding

during
2008 the year 2007
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
- 59,201 59,201
- 805 805
- 60,006 60,006
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

20 AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES (Continued)

Upon the acquisition of Century Ginwa by the Group on 31 August 2008 (see also note 30(a)),
Century Ginwa became a subsidiary of the Group. The above balance has been eliminated upon
consolidation.

The amounts due were unsecured, interest free and had no fixed terms of repayment.

The directors consider the carrying amount of amounts due from related companies approximate their
fair value. The amounts receivable were denominated in Renminbi and settled during the year.

21 AMOUNT DUE FROM A DIRECTOR

Details disclosed pursuant to Section 161B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance in relation to
amount due from a director are as follows:

Maximum
amount
outstanding
during
2008 the year 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Mr. Li Haogang 78 200 -

The amount due is unsecured, interest free and has no fixed terms of repayment. The directors
consider the carrying amount of amount due from a director approximates its fair value.

The amount receivable is denominated in Renminbi.

22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Group The Company

2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000

Deposits with banks 5,685 100,000 - 100,000
Cash at bank and in hand 84,686 138,363 8 8,410
90,371 238,363 8 108,410

(a) Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term time
deposits are made for a period of three months and earn interest at 3.15% per annum. The
directors consider the carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents approximate their fair
values.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

(b)  The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following

currencies:

Hong Kong dollars
Renminbi (note 22(c))
United States dollars

The Group The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000
929 158,824 8 108,408
90,263 79,537 - —
9 2 - 2
90,371 238,363 8 108,410

() The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, subject to relevant rules and
regulation of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC government, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign

exchange business.

23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables

Advances and deposits from staffs
Concessionaire sales payable
Customers’ deposits

Dividend payable

Other payables and accruals
Other tax payables

Payroll and welfare payables
Renovation retention

Suppliers’ deposits

The Group The Company

2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
25,306 5,296 - -
6,107 1,223 - -
209,234 60,745 - -
464,734 10,566 - -
64,372 - - -
55,744 9,260 1,905 4,142
1,571 1,163 - =
21,788 6,774 - -
2,187 125 - -
2,512 1,183 - -
828,249 91,039 1,905 4,142
853,555 96,335 1,905 4,142

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled or recognised as an income within one
year. The directors consider the carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximate their fair

values.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

(@) Currency analysis

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollars
Renminbi

The Group The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2,059 4,519 1,905 4,142
851,496 91,816 - -
853,555 96,335 1,905 4,142

(b) Aging analysis

Included in trade and other payables are trade payables with the following aging analysis as of

the balance sheet date:

0 — 30 days
31 - 90 days
Over 90 days

24 AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY

The amount due is unsecured, interest free and has no fixed terms of repayment.
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The Group
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
19,291 3,912
4,803 667
1,212 717
25,306 5,296
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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25 BANK LOANS, SECURED
The amounts are interest bearing at a range from 5.31% to 13% per annum (2007: 9.72%),
secured by investment securities and properties of related companies, guarantees given by its related
companies and third parties, and are repayable within one year.

The carrying amounts of bank loans are denominated in the following currencies:

The Group
2008 2007
HKS$'000 HK$'000
Renminbi 339,119 1,059
United States dollars 19,456 -
358,575 1,059

26 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

At 31 December 2008, the Group had obligations under finance leases repayable as follows:

2008 2007
Present Present
value of Total value of Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments

HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000

Within 1 year 154 178 - _
After 1 year but within 5 years - - - _

154 178 — -
Less: Total future interest expenses (24) -
Present value of lease obligations 154 -

The average lease term is five years. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements
have been entered into for contingent rental payments.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

27 PROMISSORY NOTES

Amount payable for acquisition of Silver Light Group
Adjustment for non-attainment of guarantee profit

Amount payable within one year

The Group and the Company

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$°000
- 6,807

- (4,327)

- 2,480

(a) On 16 May 2006, a promissory note in a principal value of HK$30,000,000 was issued as
partial consideration for the acquisition of the entire 100% equity interest in Silver Light Group
Limited and its wholly owned subsidiaries, Century Ginwa Urumgi Shopping Mall (H.K.) Limited
and Century Ginwa Urumgi (collectively known as “Silver Light Group”) (see also note 36(c)).
The promissory note was due and repayable in two years on 4 May 2006 and interest bearing
at 2% per annum. The promissory note was repaid during the year.

(b)  Upon repayment by the Group in March 2008, the holders of promissory notes agreed to waive

the accrued interest of HK$299,000.

28 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated balance sheet represents:

Provision for tax for the year (note 7(a))
Exchange differences
Provisional tax paid

Balance of tax provision relating to prior years
Under-provision in respect of prior years
Tax paid for prior years

Current taxation
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The Group
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
10,231 5,426
54 -
(6,988) (1,300)
3,297 4,126
26,857 844
- 507
(4,124) (1,632)
26,030 3,845
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

28 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

The components of deferred tax assets recognised in the balance sheet and the movements

during the year are as follows:

The Group

Deferred tax arising from:

At 1 January 2007 and 31 December 2007

At 1 January 2008

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 30(a))
Charge to profit or loss (note 7(a))
Exchange differences

At 31 December 2008

Net deferred tax assets recognised on the balance sheet

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

Decelerated Provision
depreciation Loss on Deferred for
allowances investment income impairment Others Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(5,546) (213) 1,930 (782) 669 (3,942)
(251) = 190 = 325 264
33 2 (12) 4 (4) 23
(5,764) (211) 2,108 (778) 990 (3,655)
The Group
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
3,655 =

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(r) the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of HK$37,053,000 (2007:
HK$24,771,000) as it is not probable that future taxable profits against which the losses can be
utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do not expire

under current tax legislation.
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29 CONVERTIBLE BONDS
(a) On 16 May 2006, a convertible bond in a principal amount of HK$10,000,000 was issued as
partial consideration for the acquisition of Silver Light Group (see also note 36(c)).

The convertible bond is due and mature at the end of the two years’ period after 4 May 2006.
The Company shall repay the principal amount outstanding under the convertible bond to the
bondholder(s) on the maturity date. The convertible bond is interest bearing at 1% per annum.
The bondholders shall have the right to convert the convertible bond at any time following one
year after the date of issue of the convertible bond at the initial conversion price of HK$0.624
per share (subject to the standard adjustment clause relating to the share sub-division, share
consolidation and/or rights issues).

The fair value of the liability component, included in long-term borrowings, was calculated
using a market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond. The residual amount,
representing the value of the equity conversion component, is included in shareholders’ equity
in convertible bond reserve net of deferred income taxes.

On 14 September 2007, the convertible bond of HK$10,000,000 was converted into
16,528,925 new ordinary shares of Company at an adjusted conversion price of HK$0.605 per
share.

(b)  On 19 September 2008, the Company issued 2.75% convertible bonds with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$1,231,612,200. The five-year convertible bonds were issued with a
conversion price of HK$0.689 per share and will mature on 18 September 2013. The yield to
maturity is 19.12%.

Due to several terms in the convertible bonds including price reset and cash settlement
option, the conversion will not result in the exchange of a fixed number of the Company’s
shares. In accordance with the requirements of HKAS 32, Financial Instruments: Disclosure
and Presentation and HKAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, the
convertible bond contract must be separated into two component elements: a derivative
component consisting of the conversion option and a liability component of the straight debt
element of the convertible bonds.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

29 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (cContinued)

(b)

(Continued)

On the issue of the convertible bonds, the fair value of the embedded conversion option
was calculated using the Trinomial Tree model. The derivative component, the embedded
conversion option, is carried at fair value on the balance sheet with any changes in fair value
being charged or credited to the income statement in the period when the change occurs.
The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the debt element of the convertible bonds, net
of transaction costs, and is recorded as the liability component. The liability component is
subsequently carried at amortised cost until extinguished on conversion or redemption. Interest
expense is calculated using the effective interest method by applying the effective interest rate
to the liability component through the maturity date.

If the convertible bonds are converted, the carrying amounts of the derivative and liability
components are transferred to share capital and share premium as consideration for the shares
issued. If the convertible bonds are redeemed, any difference between the amount paid related
to the liability component and the carrying amounts of liability components is recognised in the
income statement.

Fair value of the conversion option

The embedded conversion option has been separated from the host debt contract and
accounted for as a derivative liability carried at fair value through profit or loss. The fair value
of this conversion option which is not traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement to select an appropriate valuation method
and makes assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at each balance
sheet date. The valuation model requires the input of subjective assumptions, such as the
volatility of the share price, stock closing price, dividend vyield, risk-free rate, and expected
option life. Changes in subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value
estimate. For the year ended 31 December 2008, the fair value of the derivative component of
the convertible bonds was calculated using the Trinomial Tree model.

The change in the fair value of the conversion option during the period from its issuance
resulted in a fair value gain of approximately HK$73,108,000, which has been recorded as
“Fair value gain on the derivative component of convertible bonds” in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2008.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

29 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)
(b) (Continued)
The carrying values of the derivative component and liability component of the convertible
bonds as at 31 December 2008 are as follows:

The Group and the Company
Liability Derivative

component component Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

At 1 January 2008 = = =

Issue of convertible bonds (note 30(a)) 688,534 149,736 838,270
Fair value gain on the derivative component

of convertible bonds — (73,108) (73,108)

Interest expense (note 6(a)) 28,556 - 28,556

Conversion during the year (71,317) (15,488) (86,805)

At 31 December 2008 645,773 61,140 706,913

On 22 September 2008, the convertible bonds in a principal amount of HK$127,396,100 was
converted into 184,900,000 ordinary shares.

As a result of the conversion, the outstanding principal amount of the convertible bonds was
HK$1,104,216,100 as at 31 December 2008.

30 BUSINESS COMBINATION
(@) Acquisition of Century Ginwa Group

On 25 September 2007, the Group entered into agreements with Ginwa Investments and
its associates to acquire a 76.43% equity interest in Century Ginwa and Xian Century
Ginwa Property Management Company Limited (“Century Ginwa Group”) at an aggregate
consideration of RMB180,000,000 in cash and of HK$1,231,612,200 in convertible bonds
issued by the Company. The acquisition was completed on 31 August 2008, at which date the
fair value of convertible bonds and the cash consideration amounted to HK$1,044,168,000.
The fair value of the convertible bonds was determined based on the valuations carried by an
independent firm of surveyors, RHL Appraisal Ltd, using Trinomial Tree Model as at that date.
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30 BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)
Acquisition of Century Ginwa group (Continued)
The net assets acquired in the transaction, and the goodwill arising, are as follows:

(a)
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Net assets acquired:

Fixed assets

Loan receivable

Deferred tax assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Amounts due from related companies
Amount due from a director

Bank balances and cash

Trade and other payables

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries
Bank loans, secured

Dividend payable

Obligations under finance leases
Current taxation

Less: Dividends declared to former shareholders

Minority interests

Net assets acquired
Goodwill (note 16)

Total consideration

Satisfied by:
Cash
Issue of convertible bonds (note 29)

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition

Cash consideration paid
Cash and cash equivalents acquired

I
Acquiree’s
carrying
amount before
combination Fair value
HK$'000 HK$'000
104,443 84,924
1,333,018 1,333,018
3,942 3,942
18,684 18,684
29,603 29,597
16,713 16,713
108 108
82,650 82,650
(732,158) (730,644)
(71,308) (71,308)
(401,164) (401,164)
(13,585) (13,585)
(238) (238)
(22,911) (22,911)
347,797 329,786
(51,183)
(65,667)
212,936
831,232
1,044,168
205,898
838,270
1,044,168
(205,898)
82,650
(123,248)

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Century Ginwa group was attributable to the

anticipated future operating synergies from the combination.

The acquisition had contributed total revenue of HK$143,704,000 and profit before taxation to
the Group of approximately of HK$28,798,000 for the period between the date of acquisition

and 31 December 2008.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

30 BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(b)

Acquisition of business

On 10 November 2006, Xian Century Ginwa as purchaser entered into an assets acquisition
agreement with Ginwa Hi-Tech as vendor, in relation to the purchase of certain assets owned
by Ginwa Hi-Tech, for the operation of department store business of the 1st to 4th floors
of Shu Ma Da Sha of International Commercial Centre in Xian, the PRC at a consideration
of approximately RMB127,000 payable at cash after taking up obligations to pay suppliers
in the amount of approximately RMB13,981,000 on completion. After the completion, Xian
Century Ginwa could start its department store business in Xian, the PRC. The transaction was
approved in the Special General Meeting held on 18 December 2006. Approval was granted by
the government authorities and the acquisition was completed on 10 May 2007.

The acquired business contributed revenues of approximately HK$206,962,000 and net
profit of approximately HK$5,708,000 for the period between the date of acquisition and 31
December 2007.

The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition are as follows:

As at

10 May 2007

HK$°000

Fixed assets (note 13) 13,682
Inventories 2,794
Trade payables (16,340)
Net assets acquired 136
Total consideration 136
Net cash outflow on acquisition of business 136
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

31

The Group

At 1 January 2007

Exchange differences on translation of
financial statements of overseas subsidiaries

Issue of warrants

Shares issued for conversion of
convertible bonds

Placement of new shares

Shares issued for exercise of warrants

Shares issued for exercise of share options

Expenses paid for placement of shares

Profit for the year

Transfer from retained profits

At 31 December 2007

At 1 January 2008
Exchange differences on translation of
financial statements of overseas subsidiaries
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Shares issued for conversion of
convertible bonds
Shares issued for exercise of warrants
Shares issued for exercise of share options
Equity settled share-based transactions
- Amount recognised during the year
- Forfeiture of share options
Expenses paid for placement of shares
Loss for the year

Transfer from retained profits

At 31 December 2008

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share-based ~ Convertible Statutory Total
Share Share Capital ~ payment bond  Warrant surplus  Exchange Accumulated Minority equity/
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests (deficit)
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
49,106 71,905 49,886 3336 1,550 - - 1444 (112314) 64,913 - 64913
- - - - - - - 6,464 - 6,464 - 6,464
- - - - - 2455 - - - 2,455 - 2,455
1,653 8,347 - - (1,550) - - - - 8,450 - 8,450
41,8 226,382 - - - - - - - 267610 - 267610
1,255 4,898 - - - (170) - - - 5,983 - 5,983
1,600 6,904 - (1,304) - - - - - 7,200 - 7,200
- (10,564) - - - - - - - (10,564) - (10,564)
- - - - - - - - 5330 5,330 - 5,330
- - - - - - 804 - (804) - - -
94,842 307,872 49,886 2,032 - 2,285 804 7908 (107,788) 357,841 - 35784
94,842 307,872 49,886 2,032 = 2,285 804 7,908 (107,788) 357,841 = 357,841
- - - - - - - 47 - 471 - 41
- - - - - - - - - - 65,667 65,667
18,490 68313 - - - - - - - 86,803 - 86,803
200 770 = = - (50) - - - 920 - 920
2292 9,880 - (1,869) - - - - - 10,303 - 10,303
- - - 2,447 - - - - - 2,447 - 2,447
- - - (163) - - - - 163 - - -
- (162) = = = = = = - (162) - (162)
= = = = = = = = (545172)  (545,172) 534 (539,831)
- - - - - - 8,344 - (8,344) - - -
115824 386,673 49,886 2,441 - 2,235 9,148 12,619 (661,141) (82,309 71,008 (11,301)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
-

31

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

The Company

At 1 January 2007

Issue of warrants

Shares issued for conversion
of convertible bonds

Placement of new shares

Shares issued for exercise of
warrants

Shares issued for exercise of
share options

Expenses paid for placement
of shares

Loss for the year

At 31 December 2007

At 1 January 2008

Shares issued for conversion
of convertible bonds

Shares issued for exercise of
warrants

Shares issued for exercise of
share options

Equity settled share-based
transactions

- Amount recognised during
the year

- Foreiture of share options

Expenses paid for
placement of shares

Loss for the year

At 31 December 2008

Share-based  Convertible

Share Share  Contributed payment bond Warrant  Accumulated
capital premium surplus reserve reserve reserve losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
49,106 71,905 49,886 3,336 1,550 - (112,020 63,763
= = = = = 2,455 = 2,455
1,653 8,347 - - (1,550) - - 8,450
41,228 226,382 = = = = = 267,610
1,255 4,898 - - - (170) - 5,983
1,600 6,904 - (1,304) - - - 7,200
= (10,564) = = = = = (10,564)
_ _ _ - - = (2,319) (2,319)
94,842 307,872 49,886 2,032 - 2,285 (114,339) 342,578
94,842 307,872 49,886 2,032 - 2,285 (114,339) 342,578
18,490 68,313 - - - - - 86,803
200 770 - - - (50) - 920
2,292 9,880 - (1,869) - - - 10,303
- - - 2,447 - - - 2,447
- - - (163) - - 163 -
- (162) - - - - - (162)
- - - - - - (422,118) (422,118)
115,824 386,673 49,886 2,447 - 2,235 (536,294) 20,771
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31

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(c)

Share capital

Authorised and issued share capital

Authorised:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

At 1 January
Increase in authorised share capital

At 31 December
Ordianry shares, issued and fully paid:

At 1 January

Shares issued for conversion of
convertible bonds (note (i)

Shares issued for placement of new shares

Shares issued for exercise of share options
(note (i)

Shares issued for exercise of warrants

(note (iii)

At 31 December

2008 2007

No. of No. of

shares shares
‘000 HK$'000 '000 HK$'000
20,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 200,000
- - 18,000,000 1,800,000
20,000,000 2,000,000 20,000,000 2,000,000
948,419 94,842 491,067 49,106
184,900 18,490 16,529 1,653
- - 412,273 41,228
22,922 2,292 16,000 1,600
2,000 200 12,550 1,255
1,158,241 115,824 948,419 94,842

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank
equally with regard to the Company's residual assets.

(i) On 22 September 2008, the convertible bond in a principal amount of HK$127,396,100
was converted into 184,900,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at the conversion price
of HK$0.689. The excess of the conversion price over the par value of the new shares,
totalling HK$68,313,000, was credited to the share premium account of the Company.

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2008, 22,922,250 new shares of HK$0.1 each were
allotted and issued at a premium of HK$0.35 per share upon the exercise of 22,922,250
share options granted under the share option scheme as mentioned in note 32 to the
financial statements. The excess of the issue price over the par value of the new shares,
totalling HK$9,880,000 was credited to the share premium account of the Company.
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31

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(c) Share capital (Continued)

Authorised and issued share capital (Continued)

(iii)

On 28 June 2007, a board resolution was duly passed with respect to the issue of
98,200,000 warrants of the Company at an issue price of HK$0.025 per warrant for
total cash consideration of HK$2,455,000. Each warrant entitles the holder to subscribe
for one ordinary share of the Company of HK$0.1 each at an initial subscription price of
HK$0.49 per share at any time during the period from 29 June 2007, the date of issue,
to 28 June 2009.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, an aggregate of 2,000,000 new shares of
HK$0.1 each were issued for cash pursuant to the exercise of 2,000,000 warrants for a
total cash consideration of approximately HK$922,000. The excess by the subscription
price over the par value of the shares amounted to approximately HK$722,000 was
credited to the share premium account of the Company.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had 89,398,156 warrants outstanding. The
exercise in full of such warrants would, under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in an issue of 89,398,156 additional ordinary shares of the Company,
including additional share capital and share premium of approximately HK$8,940,000
and HK$32,273,000 (before expenses) respectively.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Share premium
The application of the share premium account is governed by Section 40 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of the ordinary
shares issued by the Company and the aggregate of the share capital and share
premium of a subsidiary acquired through an exchange of shares pursuant to a group
reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) by which the Company became the holding
company of the other companies comprising the Group on 28 September 2000.

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus represents the difference between the nominal value of the ordinary
shares issued by the Company and the net asset value of a subsidiary acquired through
an exchange of shares pursuant to the Reorganisation.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), contributed surplus is
distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition that the Company cannot declare
or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus of (i) it is, or
would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the
realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities
and its issued share capital and share premium accounts.
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CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iv) Share option reserve
The share option reserve comprises the fair value of the actual or estimated number
of unexercised share options granted to employees of the Company recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in note 2(q).

(v) Statutory surplus reserve
As stipulated by regulations in the PRC, the Group's subsidiaries established and
operated in the PRC are required to appropriate 10% of their after-tax profit (after
offsetting prior year losses) as determined in accordance with the PRC accounting rules
and regulations, to statutory surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of
the share capital/registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made before
distribution of a dividend to shareholders/equity owners.

(vi) Exchange reserve
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign operations as well as the effective
portion of any foreign exchange differences arising from hedges of the net investment
in these foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 2(u).

Distributability of reserves
At 31 December 2008, the aggregate amount of reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company was HK$Nil (2007: HK$Nil).

Capital management

The Group’s primarily objective when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, by
pricing products and services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels of
borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
judgements to the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group and the Company monitor its capital structure on
the basis of a net debt-to-adjusted-capital ratio. For this purpose the Group and the Company
define net debt as total debt which includes trade and other payables, loans, current taxation,
amounts due to related companies and subsidiaries, and convertible bonds less cash and cash
equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity.

During 2008, the Group's strategy was to maintain the net debt-to-adjusted-capital ratio at
the lower end of the range 10% to 45%. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt.
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CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(f)

Capital management (Continued)

Current liabilities:

Trade and other payables

Amount due to a related company
Amounts due to subsidiaries

Bank loans, secured

Obligations under finance leases
Promissory notes

Current taxation

Non-current liabilities:
Convertible bonds

Total
Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Net debt
Total (deficit)/equity
Adjusted capital

Net debt-to-adjusted-capital ratio

The Group The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000
853,555 96,335 1,905 4,142
2,502 - - -
- - 7,656 329
358,575 1,059 - =
154 - - _
- 2,480 - 2,480
26,030 3,845 - _
1,240,816 103,719 9,561 6,951
706,913 - 706,913 -
1,947,729 103,719 716,474 6,951
90,371 238,363 8 108,410
1,857,358 (134,644) 716,466 (101,459)
(11,301) 357,841 20,771 342,578
(11,301) 357,841 20,771 342,578
N/A (38%) 3,449% (30%)

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to

requirements.

1 70 CHINA GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2008

externally imposed capital



31 EXRfGEE &)

(f)

Bt %5 ¥

= M &

(BTt E
ERER ()
KEE PN/
—EENE | ZETLF | ZEBEENFE | _ZTTLF
FET FA T FET T 7T
mEaE:
JE 5 BR 7% M H b & A< B 853,555 96,335 1,905 4,142
JiE 1~ B8 48 A B) FUE 2,502 - - -
R ENGIE$ - - 7,656 329
RITE R (IKH) 358,575 1,059 - =
MEREZER 154 = - -
A E - 2,480 - 2,480
FEAS 718 26,030 3,845 - -
1,240,816 103,719 9,561 6,951
ERENEE
A A% (& 5 706,913 = 706,913 =
BT 1,947,729 103,719 716,474 6,951
R Ee B EBEIEE 90,371 238,363 8 108,410
B FEE 1,857,358 (134,644) 716,466 (101,459)
@ () R (11,301) 357,841 20,771 342,578
FARER (11,301) 357,841 20,771 342,578
B FEARE AR =R THEA (38%) 3,449% (30%)

AR REAEAHE DI TZHRBHERER -

—zzans54 | v@Eereraran 171




Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
R —STSTSTSS ] EGSGS—

32 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of attracting and retaining quality
personnel and providing incentives to eligible participants, including any directors, employees,
consultants and service providers of the Group and any persons or entities having business with
the Group. The scheme was introduced on 6 November 2001 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which share options may be granted under the scheme
shall not exceed 10% of the number of issued shares of the Company at 6 November 2001 (“General
Limit"”) unless its shareholders in general meeting renew such a limit. The General Limit was revised
to 40,922,250 shares at a Special General Meeting (“SGM") of the Company held on 15 June 2004
and further revised by 40,922,250 shares at the SGM of the Company held on 12 April 2006. The
General Limit was then revised again in the Annual General Meetings of the Company on 8 January
2007 and 6 June 2008 to 49,106,695 shares and 96,334,085 shares respectively. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, the aggregate number of shares issued or issuable under the scheme and any other
scheme(s) of the Company shall not exceed 30% of its issued share capital from time to time.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted by the grantee within 21 days from the date
of the offer. The exercise period of the share options granted (including the minimum period, if any,
for which an option must be held before it can be exercised) is determinable by the directors of the
Company, and such period of time shall not be later than 6 November 2011.

The exercise price of the share options shall be the higher of (i) the nominal value of the shares; (ii)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant; and (iii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant (subject to scheme adjustments).
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32 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Details of movements in share options granted under the scheme:

Name of
participants

Directors

Mr. Hu Yangxiong

Mr. Leung Siu Kuen

Mr. Li Haogang

Mr. Qu Jiagi

Mr. Sha Yingjie

Employees

Consultants

Exercise

Date of grant price
HK$

15 Jan 2008 0.74
15 Jan 2008 0.74
25 May 2006 0.45
15 Jan 2008 0.74
25 May 2006 0.45
15 Jan 2008 0.74
25 May 2006 0.45
15 Jan 2008 0.74
25 May 2006 0.45
15 Jan 2008 0.74
23 Feb 2004 0.54
26 Mar 2004 0.463
15 Jan 2008 0.74

Vesting and
exercise period

16 Jan 2008 to
15 Jan 2010

16 Jan 2008 to
15 Jan 2010
25 May 2006 to

25 May 2008

16 Jan 2008 to
15 Jan 2010

25 May 2006 to
25 May 2008

16 Jan 2008 to
15 Jan 2010

25 May 2006 to
25 May 2008

16 Jan 2008 to
15 Jan 2010

25 May 2006 to
25 May 2008

16 Jan 2008 to
15 Jan 2010

23 Feb 2004 to
22 Feb 2009

26 Mar 2004 to
25 Mar 2009

16 Jan 2008 to
15 Jan 2010

Number of share options
Outstanding Forfeited/  Outstanding
as at Granted Exercised lapsed as at
1 January during during during 31 December
2008 the year the year the year 2008
- 3,154,000 - - 3,154,000
- 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
3,022,250 - (3,022,250) - -
- 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
3,900,000 - (3,900,000) - -
- 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
2,000,000 - (2,000,000) - -
- 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
16,000,000 - (14,000,000) (2,000,000) -
- 10,000,000 = (10,000,000) -
4,092,225 - - - 4,092,225
12,276,675 - - - 12,276,675
- 28,452,000 - (18,968,000) 9,484,000
41,291,150 49,106,000 (22,922,250) (30,968,000) 36,506,900

Mr. Leung Siu Kuen resigned as director of the Company on
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32 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the years are as follows, whereby all

options are settled by physical delivery of shares:

Options granted to directors:
—on 25 May 2006

—on 15 Jan 2008

Options granted to employees
and consultants:

—on 23 Feb 2004

—on 26 Mar 2004

—on 25 May 2006

—on 15 Jan 2008

Total share options

Number of
options
8,922,250

10,654,000

4,092,225
12,276,675
16,000,000

38,452,000

90,397,150

(b) The number of share options are as follows:

At 1 January 2008

Exercised during the year
Forfeited/lapsed during the year
Granted during the year

At 31 December 2008
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Contractual life

Vesting conditions of options

Half year from 2 years
the date of grant

Half year from 2 years

the date of grant

Half year from 5 years
the date of grant

Half year from 5 years
the date of grant

Half year from 2 years
the date of grant

Half year from 2 years

the date of grant

2008 2007
Number Number

of options of options
41,291,150 57,291,150
(22,922,250) (16,000,000)
(30,968,000) -
49,106,000 -
36,506,900 41,291,150
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32 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

The number of share options are as follows: (Continued)

Exercisable at the end of the year
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the
year was HK$0.45 (2007: HK$0.83).

The options outstanding at 31 December 2008 had exercise prices of HK$0.74, HK$0.54
and HK$0.463 (2007: HK$0.45, HK$0.54 and HK$0.463) and a weighted average remaining
contractual life of one year (2007: one year).

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options granted is measured by reference
to the fair value of share options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share options
granted is measured based on the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. The contractual life
of the share option is used as an input into this model. Expectations of early exercise are
incorporated into the model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions 2008
Fair value at measurement date HK$0.25
Share price HK$0.74
Exercise price HK$0.74
Expected volatility (expressed as weighted average volatility used

in the model) 94.164%
Option life 2 years
Risk-free interest rate (based on Exchange Fund Notes) 1.89%-1.90%

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility (calculated based on the weighted
average remaining life of the share options), adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility based on publicly available information. Expected dividends are based on historical
dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition. This condition has not been taken into
account in the grant date fair value measurement of the services received. There were no
market conditions associated with the share option grants.
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33 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign currency risks arises in the normal course of the
Group's business. These risks are limited by the Group’s financial management policies and practices
described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the counterparties failure to
perform their obligations as at 31 December 2008 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the balance sheet. In order
to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has formulated a defined fixed credit
policy and delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade receivable
regularly at each balance sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group's
credit risk is significantly reduced. Retail sales are mainly on cash basis, either in cash, debit
card or credit card payments. The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in
relation to trade and other receivables, with exposure spread over a number of counterparties
and customers.

For loan receivables as set out in note 17, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
loan receivable on a regular basis and the value of pledged assets, if any, to ensure adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies and government authority.

(b) Liquidity risk

The Group regularly monitors current and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains cash to meet such requirements in the short and longer term.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

(i

(i)

The Group

Trade and other payables
Amount due to
a related company
Bank loans, secured
Obligations under
finance leases
Promissory notes
Current taxation
Convertible bonds

The Company

Trade and other payables
Amounts due to
subsidiaries
Promissory notes
Convertible bonds

2008 2007

Total More than Total
contractual Within 1 1 year but contractual Within
Carrying undiscounted  year or on less than ~ More than Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or on
amount cash flow demand 2 years 2 years amount cash flow demand
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
853,555 853,555 853,555 - - 96,335 96,335 96,335
2,502 2,502 2,502 - - - - -
358,575 358,575 358,575 - - 1,059 1,059 1,059
154 178 178 - - - - -
- - - - - 2,480 2,480 2,480
26,030 26,030 26,030 - - 3,845 3,845 3,845
706,913 1,247,432 30,404 30,366 1,186,662 - - -
1,947,729 2,488,272 1,271,244 30,366 1,186,662 103,719 103,719 103,719

2008 2007

Total More than Total
contractual Within 1 1 year but contractual Within
Carrying undiscounted  year or on less than  More than Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or on
amount cash flow demand 2 years 2 years amount cash flow demand
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
1,905 1,905 1,905 - - 4,142 4,142 4,142
7,656 7,656 7,656 - - 329 329 329
- - - - - 2,480 2,480 2,480
706,913 1,247,432 30,404 30,366 1,186,662 - - -
716,474 1,256,993 39,965 30,366 1,186,662 6,951 6,951 6,951
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—z2 58 | TEeRERERAm 183




Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
-

33

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk
The Group has no significant interest bearing assets other than cash at banks and loan
receivables.

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from bank loans and obligations under finance
leases. These borrowings at variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.

(i)

Interest rate profile

The Group's interest rate profile as monitored by management is set out below:

Fixed rate borrowings:

Obligations under finance leases
Bank loans, secured
Convertible bonds

Variable rate borrowings:
Bank loans, secured

Total interest bearing liabilities

Fixed rate interest bearing assets:
Loan receivables

Variable rate interest bearing assets:
Loan receivables

Time deposits

Cash at banks

Total interest bearing assets

Net interest bearing liabilities/(assets)

Effective
interest rate
%

5.58%
7.29%
16.32%

5.31%-7.47%

2%-7.839%

5.76%-7.47%
3.15%

2008

HK$'000

154
317,646
706,913

1,024,713

40,929
40,929

1,065,642

(20,979)

(882,688)
(5,685)
(83,738)

(972,111)

(993,090)

72,552
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Effective
interest rate
%

9.72%

2%
3.3%

2007

HK$°000

1,059

1,059

(30,000)
(100,000)
(112,497)

(242,497)
(242,497)

(241,438)
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(ii)  Sensitivity analysis
At 31 December 2008, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 10 basis points
in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, would decrease/increase the
Group's loss after tax and accumulated losses by approximately HK$778,000 (2007:
HK$200,000). Other components of equity would not be affected by the changes in
interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the balance sheet date and had been applied to the exposure to
interest rate risk for non-derivative financial instruments in existence at that date. The
10 basis point increase or decrease represents management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the period until the next annual balance sheet
date.

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risks primarily through sales, purchases and borrowings that
are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the operations to which
they relate. The currency giving rise to this risk is primarily United States dollars and Renminbi.

Renminbi is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign exchange transactions
involving Renminbi must take place through the People’s Bank of China or other institutions
authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange. The exchange rate adopted for the foreign
exchange transactions are the rates of exchange quoted by the People’s Bank of China.

In respect of trade and other receivables, trade and other payables and borrowings held in a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations to which they relate, the Group
ensures that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by buying or selling foreign
currencies at spot rate where necessary to address short-term imbalances.

186 CHINA GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2008



Bt 1% ¥R R MY &

(K&t &
|

33 &MIA A
(0 FERK(#F)

(i) HBETH
RZZBENF+ZA=+—H" EFMNEEELHR/THOHF EMEEMATEEHE
ERVBTIEZBERT  ARRBRBILE N AR % 7 5 B k18 in, 6 4> 89778,0005% 7T
(ZZZ+%:200,00087T) - BamP 2 EMBHORTIRME LR L/ THAYE-

AEBBEESITIBRRMNEEHREERRELE YRANZBEFEZHITESHTAEZ
NMERBMETE LA THAI0ER FHEEEEHEE T —FEAER ILHMATREEE
ZEEN RSB PTET R

(d) SERBR
AEEHRENERRREIBEREACEMECEEENINNEBAEZHE BERER-
AitmalERBRHNEEETBEREXTMARE -

ARBIAARABRBEMER MAESMARBNINER S B ABBTBERITREMERE
AEBNMNENHBE MINEXZRANELRSPRRITARIEL K-

FAUARR & P AE T BE B B LA SN 5 B M A LA B R e Lt R WK IR ~ A B R e L L B AN R IR

URER AEERFTERSEBNHMEREFINEREEREMKE AR ZFRRERR
AR IKF o

—z2n NsEH | TEeRERERAn 187
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

33

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)
The following table details the Group’s exposure at the balance sheet date to currency risk
arising from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.

(i)

Exposure to currency risk

The Group

Trade and other receivables

Loan receivables

Amount due from a director

Time deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other payables

Amount due to a related company
Bank loans, secured

Obligations under finance leases

Overall net exposure

Trade and other receivables

Loan receivables

Amounts due from related companies
Time deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other payables

Bank loans, secured

Promissory notes

Overall net exposure
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2008
United States

dollars Renminbi
‘000 ‘000
- 59,452
- 1,347,623
- 78
- 5,685
2 90,263
- (851,496)
- (2,505)
(19,456) (339,119)
- (154)
(19,454) 309,827

2007

United States

dollars Renminbi
‘000 ‘000
— 17,015
- 6,153
- 60,006
2 79,537
- (91,815)
- (1,059)
2 69,837
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33

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

(i

Exposure to currency risk (Continued)

The Company

Deposits and prepayments

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Cash and cash equivalents

Accrued expenses and other payables
Amounts due to subsidiaries

Overall net exposure

Deposits and prepayments

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Time deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Accrued expenses and other payables
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Promissory notes

Overall net exposure
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2008
United States
dollars Renminbi
‘000 ‘000
2 _
- (1,136)
2 (1,136)
2007
United States
dollars Renminbi
‘000 ‘000
- (328)
2 (328)
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33

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

(ii)  Sensitivity analysis
The following table indicates the approximate increase/decrease in the Group’s loss for
the year in response to 5% strengthening/weakening of Hong Kong dollars against the
foreign currencies to which the Group has significant exposure at the balance sheet
date. The sensitivity analysis includes balances between group companies where the
denomination of the balances is in a currency other than the functional currencies of the
lender or the borrower.
2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000
United States dollars
- 5% strengthening of HK$ 812 -
— 5% weakening of HK$ (812) -
Renminbi
— 5% strengthening of HK$ (12,935) (2,881)
- 5% weakening of HK$ 12,935 2,881
The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that the change in foreign
exchange rate had occurred at the balance sheet date and had been applied to each of
the Group entities’ exposure to currency risk for financial instrument in existence at that
date, and that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. The stated
changes represent management’s assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign
exchange rate over the period until the next annual balance sheet date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2007.

(e) Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially different from their fair values as
at 31 December 2008 and 2007.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

34 COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2008 not provided for in the financial

statements were as follows:

Contracted but not provided for:
— in respect of purchases of fixed assets

The Group

HK$’000

2008

6,804

2007
HK$'000

2,093

(b) At 31 December 2008, the total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases were payable as follows:

Within 1 year
After 1 year but within 5 years
After 5 years

The Group

2008 2007
Motor

Properties vehicles Total Properties
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
95,701 1,896 97,597 12,501
193,676 136 193,812 31,075
229,634 - 229,634 77,040
519,011 2,032 521,043 120,616

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties and motor vehicles held under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of 3 to 20 years, at the end of
which period all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
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34 COMMITMENTS (Continued)
() At 31 December 2008, the total future minimum sublease payments under non-cancellable
operating subleases were receivable as follows:

The Group
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
Within 1 year 7.441 5,753
After 1 year but within 5 years 18,983 18,600
After 5 years 509 851
26,933 25,204

The Group subleases out shopping areas in the shopping mall and office premises under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 10 years, with an option
to renew the lease after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated. Lease payments
receivable are fixed during the lease terms. Certain leases include contingent rentals.

35 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a) Litigation

(i) On 14 September 2003, Century Ginwa entered into a guarantee contract with a bank
to provide guarantee to secure a bank loan of RMB8,400,000, which was interest
bearing at 6.039% per annum, granted to an unrelated party (the “Borrower ") for
a period from 14 September 2003 to 13 March 2005. The guarantee period given
by Century Ginwa was two years starting from 14 March 2005. By default of the
Borrower |, a court judgement was obtained by the bank against Century Ginwa for
the repayment of the bank loan together with interest thereon. On 24 April 2007, an
independent third party agreed to put up guarantee to the court by his own shares in a
limited company with cost of RMB4,900,000 and the court issued a court order to freeze
the shares until 27 October 2007. On 28 October 2008, Ginwa Hi-Tech entered into
an agreement with Century Ginwa, in which it agreed to undertake Century Ginwa's
repayment liability of the bank loan. On 31 December 2008, the amount was fully
settled.
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35 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

(a)

Litigation (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

On 22 July 2004, Century Ginwa together with Mr. Wu Yijian (collectively known as the
“Guarantor 1), entered into guarantee contracts with a financial institution to provide
guarantees to secure a bank loan of RMB3,000,000, which was interest free, granted to
Ginwa Enterprise (Group) Inc. (“Ginwa Enterprise”), for a period from 20 July 2004 to
31 August 2004. The guarantee period given by the Guarantor | was two years starting
from 31 August 2004. By default of Ginwa Enterprise, a court judgement was obtained
by the financial institution on 2 November 2006 against the Guarantor | for the
repayment of the bank loan. On 11 August 2008, a court judgement was announced to
withhold bank deposit of RMB1,720,000 under Century Ginwa to repay the bank loan
due to the financial institution. On 31 August 2008, the amount was fully settled and
the liabilities were released by the court on 5 November 2008.

On 7 September 2005, Century Ginwa, together with other four unrelated parties
(collectively known as the “Guarantor I1”), entered into guarantee contracts with a bank
to provide guarantees to secure a bank loan of RMB24,000,000, which was interest
bearing at 6.138% per annum, granted to an unrelated party (the “Borrower II”) for
a period from 7 September 2005 to 6 June 2006. The guarantee period given by the
Guarantor Il was two years starting from 6 June 2006. By default of the Borrower I, a
court judgement was obtained by the bank on 30 October 2006 against the Guarantor
Il for the repayment of the bank loan together with interest and administrative expenses
thereon. On 31 August 2008, Ginwa Investments entered into a counter-indemnity
agreement with Century Ginwa to indemnify it against any loss that may arise from
this guarantee. On 31 December 2008, the outstanding balance of the bank loan was
approximately RMB18,249,000.

The directors consider that, given the nature of the claims and the preliminary status
of these proceedings, it is not possible to estimate the eventual outcome of the claims
with reasonable certainty at this stage. In addition, Ginwa Investments has agreed
to indemnify Century Ginwa against any loss that may arise from this guarantee and
therefore, no provision for penalty interest or other damages has been made in these
financial statements.
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35 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

(b)

Financial guarantees issued

(i)

(i)

On 18 April 2006, Century Ginwa, together with other three unrelated parties
(collectively known as the “Guarantor llI”), entered into guarantee contracts with a bank
to provide guarantees to secure a bank loan of RMB13,460,000 (“First Bank Loan”),
which was interest bearing at 5.22% per annum, granted to an unrelated company (the
“Borrower lII"”) for a period of six months from 27 April 2006 to 27 October 2006. The
guarantee period given by the Guarantor Ill was two years starting from 27 October
2006.

On 27 October 2006, the Borrower Il negotiated with the bank for a bank loan of
RMB12,000,000 (“Second Bank Loan"”) which was interest bearing at 5.58% per annum,
for a further six months until 26 April 2007 to repay the First Bank Loan, and the First
Bank Loan was then fully settled. Under the new loan agreement, the guarantee period
given by the Guarantor Il was extended for a further six months until 26 April 2009.

On 23 April 2008, the Borrower Il negotiated with the bank for another loan of
RMB4,500,000, which was interest bearing at 7.227% per annum, for a further
eighteen months until 22 October 2008 to repay the Second Bank Loan. Under the
new loan agreement, the guarantee period given by the Guarantor Il was extended
for a further eighteen months until 23 October 2010. On 31 August 2008, Ginwa
Investments entered into a counter-indemnity agreement with Century Ginwa to
indemnify it against any loss that may arise from this guarantee. On 31 December 2008,
the outstanding balance of the bank loan was RMB2,496,751.

As at 31 December 2008, the directors consider that the Borrower Il will settle the
amount in the near future and any claim made by the bank to Century Ginwa is unlikely.
In addition, Ginwa Investments has agreed to indemnify Century Ginwa against any
loss that may arise from this guarantee and therefore, a provision for penalty interest or
other damages has not been made in these financial statements.

On 30 June 2008, Century Ginwa, together with Ginwa Investments and Ginwa
Enterprise (collectively known as the “Guarantor IV"), entered into guarantee contracts
with a bank to provide guarantees to secure a bank loan of RMB90,000,000, which
was interest bearing at 9.486% per annum, granted to PREGF R BHER A A
(the “Borrower IV") for a period from 30 June 2008 to 31 July 2008. The guarantee
period given by the Guarantor IV was two years starting from 31 July 2008. Ginwa
Investments has equity interests in PREGFTH A ER/ AR AAF. On 31 August 2008,
Ginwa Investments entered into a counter-indemnity agreement with Century Ginwa to
indemnify it against any loss that may arise from this guarantee.

200 CHINA GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2008



Bt 1% ¥R R MY &

(K&t &
|

35 HEEE &)

(b) HBEHRZEH
i) RZZFEZERFOA+TN\B ARFEREC=AEMEAL (KXRBSERAIL)
H-friR{TRARECR R—AAEBEQA ([ERAILAZRITERARE
13,460,000 ([F—EFRNREHTAIMENEITNETEECRE ZEXNFHNER
5.22% ERHRA _ZERFOA -+ LRARE_TTRF+A-_+TLHIL - RED
AR -—ZTRFTA-_+tLtHEERF-

—EERFTAZT LR ERANEFETHEERARE12,000,000([FE=_E5])E
BEEE—BF FHER558% ERFEHRANEARE_ZEE+FNA -+ "H-F—F
HEEHMEE - BEFERAR ERAIIZREZFHRITABER SEAZE ST NF
MA=-—+/xH-

—EENFHNAZTZ=H BRAINIERITHEERARKEAL500,000EEEEFEF T
FHoEFRT227%  BEFRHEH+ N \EAAE - EENE+A-F+_H-F_ERC 2
FE-REBEFEREGR BERAINIZAREZHRTABEE TN NEAZE_FE—FF+ A
—t=H-RZZEZEN\FNA=Z+—H eERERBENERRE T REREBAAA -
R-ZEENF+_A=+—8 NEXNREAARK2,496,751 °

ARBIZEEZRRZERAIIERAIAGREZEER ZRITERANRRZEER /-
o EERERNBMEAERTAEBBBRARAZEMER A AR BHRRL
EREBEAEEISHEEHIER-

(il RZZBEZNFEXNAZ+B ARQRFEBERESERERESELE (SE)RHBERRR (XF
BATERAIV]) B—MRTRIREAR  AXAFHRBEER AR ([ERA
IV ]) AIZIBITER ARE0,000,0002 T AIMEMEE NESETLRE ZEXD
FHREL486% BEFRHELA T /N\FENA=ZTHEBZ T N\F+A=+—HI"
REHUNAK - ZEZN\FLAZ+ - BERF -RRAFERBEEGR AT B —MESER
EERMORAR - R-_ZEENFNA=Z+—8 £EREMBENETIRE T RIERS
NN

—z2nss8 | r@EemeraRan 201




Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

35 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

(b)

Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

(iii)

On 29 September 2007, Century Ginwa entered into guarantee contracts with a bank
to provide guarantees to secure a bank loan of RMB18,900,000, which was interest
bearing at 9.534% per annum, granted to a Ginwa Investments for a period from
29 September 2007 to 28 September 2008. The guarantee period given by Century
Ginwa was two years starting from 28 September 2008. On 31 August 2008, Ginwa
Investments entered into a counter-indemnity agreement with Century Ginwa to
indemnify it against any loss that may arise from this guarantee. On 29 September
2008, Ginwa Investments negotiated with the bank to extend the loan period for eleven
months until 28 August 2009, with interest bearing at 15.3421% per annum. The
guarantee period given by Century Ginwa was extended for eleven months until 28
August 2011.

36 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

Transactions with key management personnel
All key management personnel are directors of the Company, and their remuneration is

disclosed in note 8(a).

Certain bank borrowings of the Group secured by guarantees from certain related parties are

as follows:
2008 2007
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Xian Ya Jian International Golf Company Limited
("Ya Jian") (1) 95,628 -
Ginwa Enterprise together with Mr. Wu Yijian (1) 15,917 -
Ginwa Enterprise (1) 71,057 -
Ginwa Investments together with
SEBBRXEEER A A (1) 56,142 -
Ginwa Investments together with Ya Jian (1) 40,929 -
Ginwa Investments (1) 78,902 -
358,575 -
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36 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had the following significant
related party transactions during the year:

2008 2007

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

Guarantee profit 2) - 4,327

Interest receivable from Ginwa Investments (1) 19,269 -

Rent paid to Ginwa Enterprise (1) 7.268 6,164
Repairs and maintenance fee paid to

Ginwa Hi-Tech (1) 673 308

Note:

(1) Ya Jian, Ginwa Investments, Ginwa Enterprise, & 1€ B A)HE B R A7 and Ginwa Hi-Tech are related
to the Group by virtue of Mr. Wu Yijian, the former executive, director and chairman’s equity interests in
them.

(2) Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement entered into with Mr. Guo Qiang and Mr. Li Haogang (the
“Vendors"”) by the Company on 16 February 2006 for the acquisition of Silver Light Group, the Vendors
guaranteed that the audited profit before tax of Century Ginwa Urumgi for the financial years ended 31
December 2006 and 2007 would not be less than RMB14,000,000 in aggregate. At 31 December 2007,
the Vendors compensated the Company a guarantee profit of HK$4,327,000 by an adjustment to the
promissory notes issued to the Vendors (see also note 27). As Mr. Wu Yijian is the elder brother of Mr.
Guo Qiang, Mr. Guo is deemed as a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Other related party transactions

On 25 September 2007, the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary, China Rich International
Management Limited (“China Rich”) entered into an acquisition agreement with Ginwa
Investments in which China Rich agreed to acquire and Ginwa Investments agreed to dispose
of a 76.43% equity interest in Century Ginwa owned by Ginwa Investments at a consideration
of RMB180,000,000 (the “CG Acquisition”). On the same day, the Company also entered
into an agreement with Best Mineral Resources Limited (“Best Mineral”) and Mr. Wu (the
“BM Agreement”), pursuant to which Best Mineral agreed to (i) assist the Company, China
Rich and their agents and advisers in obtaining the right to access the books, records and
other related documents of Century Ginwa; (ii) procure Century Ginwa to assist the Company,
China Rich and their agents and advisers in their due diligence review; (iii) provide the relevant
information and files upon request by the Company, China Rich and their agents and advisers;
and (iv) assist the Company in drafting the Acquisition Agreement, and in consideration of
Best Mineral’s provision of the Profit Guarantee and the Repayment Guarantee, the Company
agreed to issue convertible bonds in a principal amount of HK$1,231,612,200 to Best Mineral
upon the completion of the CG Acquisition.
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36 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

37

38

(d)

(e)

Other related party transactions (Continued)

Upon completion of the acquisition agreement, Ginwa Investments shall be obliged to repay
the amount due to Century Ginwa to Century Ginwa within a period of five years commencing
from the completion of the Acquisition with interest at the five-year lending rate published by
the Bank of China, the PRC as at the date of completion of the CG Acquisition (see also note
17(d)(iii)).

Since Ginwa Investments is 60% owned by Mr. Wu, being an executive director of the
Company before he resigned on 28 May 2008, Ginwa Investments is a connected person
of the Company. Therefore, the entering into of the acquisition agreement between Ginwa
Investments and China Rich, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, constitutes a non-
exempted connected transaction. Best Mineral is the substantial shareholder of the Company.
Best Mineral is a connected person of the Company by virtue of it being a substantial
shareholder, and the entering into of the BM Agreement among the Company, Best Mineral
and Mr. Wu therefore constitutes a non-exempted connected transaction. Mr. Qu Jiaqi, Mr. Li
Haogang and Mr. Sha Yingjie, executive directors of the Company, are also executive directors
and senior staff of Century Ginwa.

These transactions were approved in the SGM held on 17 January 2008. The indirect
shareholding of Mr. Wu ceased in June 2008. Approvals were granted by related China
government authorities on the CG Acquisition on 31 August 2008.

Balances with related parties are disclosed in the balance sheets and in notes 17, 20, 21 and
24.

NON-ADJUSTING POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, there were no other significant events that
took place subsequent to 31 December 2008.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The management had made the following estimates and assumptions in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies, which are described in note 2(b), that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities as discussed below.

(a)

(b)

Useful lives of fixed assets and depreciation
The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation for
the Group’s fixed assets. This estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of fixed assets of similar nature and functions.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated selling expenses. These estimates are based on the current market
condition and the historical experience of selling products of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in customer taste or competitor actions in response to
severe consumer product industry cycles. Management reassesses these estimates at each
balance sheet date.
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38 KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Allowances for doubtful debts

The policy for allowance of doubtful debts of the Group is based on the evaluation of
collectability and ageing analysis of accounts and on management’s judgement. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the past collection history of each customer. If the
financial conditions of customers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment
of their ability to make payments, additional allowances may be required.

Income taxes

The Group is primarily subject to income taxes in the PRC. Significant estimation and
judgement are required in determining the amount of the provision for tax and the timing of
payment of the related taxes. There are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the final outcome
of tax assessment is different from the carrying amounts of tax provision, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

39 COMPARATIVE FIGURES, RESTATEMENTS AND RECLASSIFICATIONS

(a)

(b)

Revenue recognition

In previous years, gross proceeds from concessionaire sales and net proceeds payable to
relevant stores after deduction of commission receivable by the Group were included in
turnover and cost of sales of the Group respectively. In the current year, the Group has
recognised commission income from concessionaire sales as revenue only. The directors
consider that the restatement reflects more appropriately the nature of this income.

Comparative figures
Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified and adjusted to conform with the current
year's presentation.
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40

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 DECEMBER 2008

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of
amendments, new standards and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2008 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements:

HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 & 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKFRS 1 (Revised)

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 8

HK(IFRC)-Int 13
HK(IFRC)-Int 15
HK(IFRC)-Int 16
HK(FRC)-Int 17
HK(IFRC)-Int 18

Improvements to HKFRSs '

Presentation of financial statements ?

Borrowing costs ?

Consolidated and separate financial statements ?

Puttable financial instruments and obligations arising
on liquidation ?

Eligible hedged items ?

First-time adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ?

Cost of an investment in a subsidiary, jointly controlled
entity or associate 2

Vesting conditions and cancellations 2

Business combinations ?

Operating segments ?

Customer loyalty programmes 4

Agreements for the construction of real estate ?

Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation °

Distribution of non-cash assets to owners ?

Transfers of assets from customers ?

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009 except for the amendments to HKFRS 5,
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

[CINE NN

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October 2008

The Group is assessing the impact of these amendments and new standards and has so far concluded
that they are not in a position to state whether their adoption will have a significant impact on the
Group'’s results of operations and financial position.
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Summary Financial Information (2004-2008) MK ERNBE (ZEEMEZ_EE N\ &)

For year ended 31 December 2008 BZ_ZZN\F+-A=+—H1

212

RESULTS
£

Turnover
- Continuing operations
- Discontinued operations

(Loss)/profit attributable
to shareholders
- Continuing operations
- Discontinued operations

BEE
—“RERERH

~REBEXT

BeRE( (B1R)/
bl
-RERERH
~REREXTH

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EEREE

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
DEDUCT:
CURRENT LIABILITIES

NET CURRENT
(LIABILITIES)/ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
DEDUCT:

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS

FRBEE

RBEE

bo

RBEE

(BR)/mBEE
HE

BEERRBAR

b
ERBEE
(Bf) /EERE

Year ended Penod1frJor|n
31 December ZOOSUtg Year ended 30 June
BE+t-A=t-HLEE BENAZTALEE
31 December
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
—TThEF
tH—HZE
—ZTRF
TZR=1-H
—EENE e 8 o3 il TR —TTNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THT THT AT FHT
(Restated) (Restated)
(E31) (E351)
301,052 115,656 34,681 - -
- - 15,000 70,933 136,925
301,052 115,656 49,681 70,933 136,925
(545,172) 5,330 (23,701) (7,647) (9,377)
- - (127,501) 9,822 32,173
(545,172) 5,330 (151,202) 2,175 22,796
As at 31 December As at 30 June
Wt+=A=+—-H RANA=+H
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
—EENF e o3 ZTTRE —ZTHE —ZETMF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR FTAET THEL THEL FHET
1,732,412 106,574 74,611 210,626 183,827
204,016 354,986 53,275 22,874 74,299
1,240,816 103,719 41,650 30,829 30,696
(1,036,800) 251,267 11,625 (7,955) 43,603
695,612 357,841 86,236 202,671 227,430
706,913 - 21,323 3,000 25,474
(11,301) 357,841 64,913 199,671 201,956
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